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2014
2015 12 31 2015
2014 2015
2015
2015
2015
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4,473 4,313
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2.1.2 2015 12 31 2014 12 31 12 PICC
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
CoC 341 288
(CD)) (48)
CoC 283 240
1.
2. 2014 12 31 2015 12 31
2.2
PICC 2014 12 31 2015 12 31
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2. 2014 12 31 2015 12 31
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)
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33,697,756,583
H 8,726,234,000
42,423,990,583
2015 12 31
30,600,000,000 [ 30,600,000,000
2009 28 | 30,600,000,000 | 30,600,000,000 (515,916 y | (515,916 )
3,891,050,583 | 34,491,050,583
2011 15 3,891,050,583 | 34,491,050,583 (65,603 y |(s81,519 )
H
2012 12 7,932,940,000 | 42,423,990,583 7,932,940,000 | 42,423, 990,583

(133,749 )

(715,268 )
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100820 29,896,189,564 70.47
100032 3,801,567,019 8.96
11
615,714,000 1.45
American 10038 1,113,405,000 2.62
. 175
International
Group, INC.
BlackRock ’ 496,662,245 1.17
35 923 537 828 84.67
615,714,000 H
State Street Global Advisors SSGA
13,435,000 H
H
496,662,245 5.69 H

Trident Merger, LLC
BlackRock Investment Management, LLC

BlackRock Holdco 2, Inc.
BlackRock Financial Management, Inc.

BlackRock Holdco 4, LLC
Holdco 6, LLC
Inc.
Trust Company
BlackRock Fund Advisors
Advisors, LLC

Limited
Investment Management (Australia) Limited

BlackRock
BlackRock Delaware Holdings
BlackRock Institutional

National Association

BlackRock

BlackRock Japan Co., Ltd.
BlackRock Asset Management Canada
BlackRock

BlackRock Asset Management North Asia Limited

BlackRock (Netherlands) B.V.
BlackRock Advisors (UK) Limited
International Limited
Asset Management lIreland Limited
S.A.
Management (UK) Limited
BlackRock Asset Management Deutschland AG
BlackRock Fund Managers Limited

(Schweiz) AG
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2016 19 2016 6
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2012 12
H X )
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
3.94 4.96 3.92 5.85
(56.26 ) (70.83 ) (55.98 ) (83.54 )
3.59 3.20 2.88 3.35
(51.27 ) (45.70 ) (41.13 ) (47.84 )
H ) )
2015 7 2015 8 2015 9 2015 10 2015 11 2015 12
4.97 4.34 4.00 4.23 4.28 4.17
(70.97 ) (61.98 ) (57.12 ) (60.40 ) (61.12 ) (59.55 )
3.61 3.39 3.35 3.78 3.94 3.65
(51.55 ) (48.41 ) (47.84 ) (53.98 ) (56.26 ) (52.12 )
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2015 12 31
2015 2014

5 388,387 349,169

5 (31,255) (32,788)
5 357,132 316,381

5 (7,821) (10,767)
349,311 305,614

9,678 10,109

6 44,336 33,426
7 2,686 2,347
406,011 351,496

93,319 95,428

180,684 162,107

9,138 (2,174)

4,149 4,352

8 287,290 259,713

8 (21,147) (20,953)
8 266,143 238,760
35,963 26,464

9 4,603 5,053

(632) (34)

10 72,455 63,678
378,532 333,921

6,491 5,845

11 33,970 23,420

14 (6,305) (4,705)
27,665 18,715

19,542 13,109

8,123 5,606

27,665 18,715

15 0.46 0.31
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5 (526,959) (552,806)
5 6,021,246 5,334,184
5 (131,862) (181,532)
5,889,383 5,152,652

163,171 170,438

6 747,505 563,562
7 45,286 39,570
6,845,345 5,926,223

1,573,358 1,608,916

3,046,332 2,733,124

154,067 (36,654)

69,952 73,375

8 4,843,709 4,378,761
8 (356,538) (353, 268)
8 4,487,171 4,025,494
606,336 446,183

9 77,607 85,194
(10, 656) (573)

10 1,221,591 1,073,611
6,382,050 5,629,908

109,438 98,547

11 572,734 394,861
14 (106,302) (79,326)
466,432 315,535

329,478 221,018

136,954 94,517

466,432 315,535

15 7.76 5.23
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(219) 253
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17 49,884 39,307
18 8 23
19 232,147 235,905
20 125,275 92,637
21 21,558 18,475
22,37 26,542 25,857
23 148,097 164,408
9,914 9,346
24 110,485 98,130
26 53,308 36,128
27 10,358 10,682
28 23,005 21,590
29 1,005 808
30 3,941 3,902
31 2,251 1,086
32 25,600 23,937
843,468 782,221
34 28,231 35,488
18 2
3,117 979
35 980 687
36 39,210 47,914
37 507,686 478,640
38 27,601 25,520
8,114 7,966
39 2,990 2,862
31 1,455 915
40 66,889 55,671
686,273 656,644
4 42,424 42,424
42 73,677 50,157
116,101 92,581
41,094 32,996
157,195 125,577

843,468 782,221
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19 3,913,998 3,977,358
20 2,112,137 1,561,860
21 363,468 311,489
22,37 447,498 435,949
23 2,496,915 2,771,919
167,150 157,574
24 1,862,777 1,654,472
26 898,773 609,118
27 174,636 180,099
28 389,382 364,007
29 16,944 13,623
30 66,445 65,788
31 37,952 18,310
32 431,616 403,578
14,220,870 13,188,246
34 475,975 598,328
18 34
52,553 16,506
35 16,523 11,583
36 661,081 807,830
37 8,559,586 8,069,870
38 465,353 430,267
136,802 134,307
39 50,411 48,253
31 24,531 15,427
40 1,127,749 938,613
11,570,563 11,071,018
41 715,269 715,269
42 1,242,194 845,647
1,957,463 1,560,916
692,845 556,313
2,650,308 2,117,228

14,220,870 13,188,246
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2015 1
1
42,424 19,925 2,142 4,011 497 1,966 5 (96) 802 (15,065) - 35,970 92,581 32,996 125,577
- - - - - - - - - - - 19,542 19,542 8,123 27,665
«C ) - - 4,292 - - 266 (8) 47 - - (693) 421 4,325 1,585 5,910
- - 4,292 - - 266  (8) 47 - - (693) 19,963 23,867 9,708 33,575
- - - 1,759 - - - - 299 - - (2,058) - - -
- - - - 803 - - - - - - (803) - - -
- - - - - - - - - - - (402)  (402) (1,345) (1,747)
- - - - - - - - - 55 - - 55  (265)  (210)
2015
12 31
42,424 19,925 6,434 5,770 1,300 2,232  (3) (49) 1,101 (15,010) (693) 52,670 116,101 41,094 157,195
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- - - - - - - - - - - 329,478 329,478 136,954 466,432
(
) - - 72,363 - - 4,485 (135) 792 - - (11,684) 7,098 72,920 26,723 99,643
- - 72,363 - - 4,485 (135) 792 - - (11,684)336,576 402,398 163,677 566,075
- - - 29,657 - - - - 5,041 - - (34,698) - - -
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_ _ _ - - - - - - - 13,109 13,109 5,606 18,715
«C ) - - 8,442 - - 250 8 9 - - (384) 8,325 2,800 11,125
- - 8,442 - - 250 8 9 - - 12,725 21,434 8,406 29,840
- - - 1,166 - - - - 223 - (1,389) - - -
_ ; - - 497 - - - - - (497) - - -
- - i, - - - - - - - (352 (352) (981) (1,333)
_ _ i - . - - - - - - 2,269 2,269
i - i - - - - - (76) - () 76 -
2014 12
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715,269 335,936 (106,218)47,967

- 28,932 (51)(1,770)

9,762 (252,715)429,643 1,206,755 391,590 1,598,345

- 142,332 -

4,215 135 152

- 221,018 221,018 94,517 315,535

- (6,474) 140,360 47,208 187,568

- 142,332 -

4,215 135 152

- 214,544 361,377 141,725 503,102

- - 19,659
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33,970 23,420
6 (44,336) (33,426)
(632) (34)
(6,491) (5,845)
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/C ) (5,547) 21,497
189,237 31,478
456,721 72,801
(112,085) (79,529)
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419 341
50,474 46,754
( )
3,385 1,864
(12) 12
3,373 1,876
53,440 48,277
407 353
53,847 48,630

1,180 952
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2015 12 31

28
2014 12 31

2013 10

EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

2014

OooooOodd
2015 30 2014 30
302,424 233,990
(25,905) -
276,519 233,990
14.06 10.87

38,879 25,435
485 .
2,604 1,351
117 (68)
41,851 26,718
45,006 30,253

1AS

2014 10 2015 30

30 )
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EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
oOoOooodn

2015 12 31 2014 12 31

18,426 14,560

4,291 1,580

14,111 12,938

24 42

14,135 12,980

2015 2014

2,868 2,518

1,566 2,149

7 33

1,573 2,182

- 81

- 1

- 82

1,566 2,230

7 34

1,573 2,264

129 146

2015 12 31 2014 12 31

14,111 12,938
32.92 32.92

4,645 4,259
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EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

OoOoOoOoOodno
©
( ) 2015 2014
158 142
C )
150 @
308 140
6,812 5,151
27.
( ) 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
10,682 10,075
15 80
( 28 170 556
¢ 30 7 119
414 269
14 173
« )
( 6()) (510) 21
( 28) (424) (565)
(10) (46)
10,358 10,682
2015 12 31 3,122 2014 12 31 : 3,101
PICC P&C PICC
DTZ
PICC
€Y}

@
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2015 12 31
28.
( )
2015
¢ 2n
¢ 2n
2015 12 31
2015
(
¢ 2n
2015 12 31
2015
2015 12 31
2015 12 31
2015

4.0

11)

EDINETOOOO

OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

8.0 2014 12 31 4.0 8.0
23,129 7,082 1,960 1,714 33,885
1,616 605 53 1,245 3,519
425 7 - (432) -
424 - - - 424
(240) - - - (240)
(81) (299) (230) (95) (705)
25,273 7,395 1,783 2,432 36,883
5,420 4,882 1,124 - 11,426
750 1,111 270 - 2,131
(70) - - - (70)
(44) (285) (217) - (546)
6,056 5,708 1,177 - 12,941
831 2 - 36 869
@) - - (21) (22)

830 2 - 15 847
18,387 1,685 606 2,417 23,095
16,878 2,198 836 1,678 21,590

169/358
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( )
2014
¢ 2n
¢ 2n
2014 12 31
2014
(
¢ 2n
2014 12 31
2014
¢ 1
¢ 2n
2014 12 31
2014 12 31
2014
2015 12 31
2015 12 31

EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
oOoOooodn

22,228 6,585 1,811 1,703 32,327
439 754 320 686 2,199
633 22 - (655) -
565 - - - 565

(683) - - - (683)
(53) (279) (171) (20) (523)
23,129 7,082 1,960 1,714 33,885
4,844 3,583 978 - 9,405
11) 694 1,564 309 - 2,567
(104) - - - (104)
(14) (265) (163) - (442)
5,420 4,882 1,124 - 11,426
832 - - 36 868
24 2 - - 26
(23) - - - (23)
() - - - )
831 2 - 36 869
16,878 2,198 836 1,678 21,590
16,552 3,002 833 1,667 22,054

921 2014 12 31 1,378

3,735 2014 12 31 3,554

33(b)
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29.

30.

11)

11)

EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
oOoOooodn

2015 12 31 2014 12 31
1,282 894

410 301

(76) (€)

1,616 1,282

474 361

147 115

(10) (©))

611 474

1,005 808

808 533

2015 12 3l 2014 12 31

5,003 4,862

259 425

27) (10) (161)
(79) (33)

5,263 5,003

1,147 1,064

158 131

27) ) 42)
(24) (6)

1,278 1,147

44 44

3,941 3,902

3,902 3,754
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31.

2015

2014

EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
oOoOooodn

2015 12 31 2014 12 31
2,251 1,086
(1,455) (915)
796 171
2015
12 31
812 165 - 977
1,594 @n - 1,567
(820) - (1,752) (2,572)
(81) (51) - (132)
(6) - 3 ©)
(1,596) 128 (107) (1,575)
228 2,239 - 2,467
40 27 - 67
171 2,481 (1,856) 796
2014
12 31
1,149 (337) - 812
1,003 591 - 1,594
939 - (1,759) (820)
8 (89) - (81)
@) - €] ©)
(1,481) 5) (110) (1,596)
(353) 581 - 228
(153) 193 - 40
1,110 934 (1,873) 171
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EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

Ogoooood
2015 12 31
11,874 2014 12 31
11,271 2015 12 31 10,441 2014 12 31
10,191
( ) 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
2016 12 31 470 904
2017 12 31 408 1,142
2018 12 31 5,344 5,104
2019 12 31 3,571 3,041
2020 12 31 648 -
10,441 10,191
32.
( ) 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
11,202 11,184
@ 3,345 4,603
(b) 5,008 2,046
©) 344 344
90 306
7,247 6,723
27,236 25,206
(d) (1,636) (1,269)
25,600 23,937
(a) 2015 12 31 5.22
6.45 2014 12 31 6.00 6.45
(b)
( ) 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
3,817 161
583 1,229
608 656
5,008 2,046
(394) (400)

4,614 1,646
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©

@

¢ 1
12 31
33.

@

2015 12 31

(b)

2014 12 31

©

42(d) (3

2015 12 31

2015 12 31

687

34

EDINETOOOO

OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

oOoOooodn
344 2014 12 31 344
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
1,269 1,307
383 21
(16) (59)
1,636 1,269
2014 12 31
2014 12 31
2015 12 31 980
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
43,635 44,415
28,231 35,488
15,404 8,927
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34.

35.

36.

6.08

4.08
8.19

44(0)(2)

10

6.19 2014 4.08

EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

oooooog
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
20,449 24,669
7,782 10,819
28,231 35,488

33(c)
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
980 687
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
3,031 3,062
6,043 844
30,136 44,008
39,210 47,914
6.19 6.08 8.19 2014
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EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

OooooOodd
37.
2015 12 31

( )

) 285,376 89 285,287
©)
i 3,004 508 2,496
_ 1,734 88 1,646
©
- 114,639 16,669 97,970
- 102,933 9,188 93,745
507,686 26,542 481,144
2014 12 31

( )

@) 276,238 65 276,173
®
- 2,575 564 2,011
i, 1,467 93 1,374
©
- 102,702 15,673 87,029
- 95,658 9,462 86,196
478,640 25,857 452,783
@

( )
2014 278,412 68 278,344
93,254 3 93,251
(39,955) (6) (39,949)
(55,473) - (55,473)
2014 12 31 276,238 65 276,173
102,457 43 102,414

(40, 396) (19) (40,377)
(52,923) - (52,923)
2015 12 31 285,376 89 285,287
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(b)

€))

( )
2014

2014 12 31
2015 12 31
@

( )
2014

2014 12 31
2015 12 31
©

€))

( )
2014

2014 12 31
2015 12 31

EDINETOOOO

OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

oOoOooodn

3,310 1,041 2,269
6,720 1,886 4,834
(7,455) (2,363) (5,092)
2,575 564 2,011
7,734 1,975 5,759
(7,305) (2,031) (5,274)
3,004 508 2,496
1,392 188 1,204
9,038 1,713 7,325
(8,963) (1,808) (7.,155)
1,467 93 1,374
10,062 1,631 8,431
(9,795) (1,636) (8.,159)
1,734 88 1,646
92,051 14,913 77,138
155,387 19,064 136,323
(144,736) (18,304) (126,432)
102,702 15,673 87,029
172,950 19,129 153,821
(161,013) (18,133) (142,880)
114,639 16,669 97,970
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EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

OooooOodd
@
( )
2014 86,611 11,012 75,599
253,166 30,773 222,393
(244,119) (32,323) (211,796)
2014 12 31 95,658 9,462 86,196
281,817 29,158 252,659
(274,542) (29,432) (245,110)
2015 12 31 102,933 9,188 93,745
38.
( ) 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
25,823 23,734
1,778 1,786
27,601 25,520
( ) 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
25,520 41,640
9,151 5,111
(8,269) (22,569)
( ) 1,199 1,338
27,601 25,520
2015 12 31 2.5 6.0 2014
12 31 2.5 6.0
39.

2003 31

2003
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EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

OoOoOoOoOodno
@
( ) 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
2,862 2,614
( ) 101 118
226 286
46 98
(245) (254)
2,990 2,862
272 2014 384 2015
« )/ 2014 12 31
421 «C )
C )
()
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
- 2.60 3.40
- 2.85 3.65
- 3.00 3.75
- 2.50 2.50
- 8.00 8.00
2015 12 31
3.7 8.6 12.8 2014 12

31 3.4 8.5 12.6
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EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

Ogoooood
44(b)(2)
42(d)(3)
2,847
©
( ) 2015 2014
+50bp (150) (140)
-50bp 164 153
+50bp 161 152
-50bp (149) (140)
40.
( ) 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
16,054 11,495
12,139 8,726
11,169 11,482
8,451 7,371
5,243 3,776
5,141 4,872
803 813
719 916
7,170 6,220
66,889 55,671
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
41.
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
( )
33,698 33,698
H 8,726 8,726
42,424 42,424
( )
33,698 33,698
H 8,726 8,726

42,424 42,424
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EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

Ogoooood
42.
@
(b)
2014
©
50
25
(d)
€))
( ) @ (2 ( 39
2015 30 (17,942) 2,847 (15,065)
55 - - 55
2015 12 31 85 (17,942) 2,847 (15,010)
(€))
( ) @ @ C 39
2014 106 (17,942) 2,847 (14,989)
(76) - - (76)

2014 12 31 30 (17,942) 2,847 (15,065)
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EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
oOoOooodn

@
25(c)

(2) 2009 30

(3) 2009 2,847

43.

@

(b)

2015 12 31 2014 12 31

( )

PICC P&C 85,356 37,831 226 79,440 33,290 239
PICC 36,599 12,082 303 34,654 11,529 301
PICC 3,191 1,826 175 3,206 1,718 187

( CIRC )
100
100 150
100
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EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

ooooooo

©
44.
@
€))

2013 2.5

2013
2015 12 31 285,376 165,485
2.5 / 103,689 4.025 /

2015 12 31 148,032 52
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EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

Ogoooood
@
( ) 2015 2014
( ) 127,798 113,327 114,668 99,501
18,288 15,758 16,871 14,509
37,656 34,914 33,940 30,822
36,733 33,260 32,321 28,545
61,342 55,399 55,366 49,016
281,817 252,658 253,166 222,393
(€))
13,699 2014 18,342

IBNR
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EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

OoOoOoOoOodno
“)
PICC
( ) 2015 2014
+50bp 3,319 2,720
-50bp (3,605) (2,883)
/ 10 (288) (153)
/ -10 298 156
25 697 358
-25 (894) (384)
110 (91) (82)
90 91 82
PICC
( ) 2015 2014
+25bp 83 27
-25bp €D @n
/ 10 (32) )
/ -10 32 4
10 27 3
-10 (1) “)
110 (10) 3

90 10 )
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EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

OoOoOoOoOodno
2015 2014
2015 12 31
5,023 (2014 12 31 4,452 )
12 31
( ) 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

98,939 113,718 138,469 151,002 168,917 671,045
97,976 113,751 138,704 150,258 - 500,689
96,982 113,854 140,300 - - 351,136
95,909 113,903 - - - 209,812
94,417 - - - - 04,417
94,417 113,903 140,300 150,258 168,917 667,795

(87,346) (110,606) (134,032) (131,459) (104,228) (567,671)

2011

186/358

100,124

14,515
114,639



2011

(b)
€Y

EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
oOoOooodn

12 31

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

83,972 95,107 120,247 131,580 150,509 581,415
83,254 95,297 120,335 131,436 - 430,322
82,543 95,233 120,350 - - 298,126
81,620 95,538 - - - 177,158
80,563 - - - - 80,563
80,563 95,538 120,350 131,436 150,509 578,396
(74,643) (92,956) (115,758) (116,024) (95,258) (494,639)

19
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83,757

14,213
97,970



EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
oOoOooodn

188/358

2015 12 31 2014 12 31

49,883 39,306

8 23

232,147 235,905

10,361 20,300

21,558 18,475

26,542 25,857

148,097 164,408

9,914 9,346

110,485 98,130

24,568 21,908

633,563 633,658

17
24
2015 12 31
31
30 90
90

49,883 - - - - - 49,883
8 - - - - - 8
232,147 - - - - 26 232,173
10,361 - - - - - 10,361
16,862 750 1,357 1,097 3,204 4,361 24,427
26,542 - - - - - 26,542
148,097 - - - - - 148,097
9,914 - - - - - 9,914
110,485 - - - - - 110,485
21,729 826 315 1,541 2,682 1,793 26,204
626,028 1,576 1,672 2,638 5,886 6,180 638,094
- - - - - (4,531) (4,531)
626,028 1,576 1,672 2,638 5,886 1,649 633,563



EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

ooooooo
2014 12 31
31
30 90
( ) 90
39,306 - - - - - 39,306
23 - - - - - 23
235,905 - - - - - 235,905
20,300 - - - - - 20,300
14,729 494 1,172 893 2,559 3,876 21,164
25,857 - - - - - 25,857
164,408 - - - - - 164,408
9,346 - - - - - 9,346
98,130 - - - - - 98,130
18,526 462 374 1,982 2,818 1,833 23,177
626,530 956 1,546 2,875 5,377 5,709 637,616
- - - - - (3,958) (3,958)
626,530 956 1,546 2,875 5,377 1,751 633,658
2015 12 31 99.86
2014 12 31 99.82 AA/A-2
2015 12 31 98.69 2014 12 31 99.15
(China Securities Depository
and Clearing Corporation Limited) csbce
CsDCC

2015 2014 12 31
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@)

24

2015 12 31 (2014 12 31 )
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EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

Ogoooood
/ /
2015 12 31
/ -
12 -

31,656 19,143 - - - - 50,799
- - 2 3 - - 5
- 4,588 18,198 97,793 199,437 - 320,016
- 32 448 220 135 - 835
- 4,127 12,859 60,770 40,153 - 117,909
- 429 4,891 36,803 159,149 - 201,272
- - 761 11,9017 1,000 113,914 127,592
5,124 10,472 3,255 2,666 41 - 21,558
- 4,051 13,643 6,821 2,336 - 26,851
- 11,850 53,999 97,802 538 - 164,189
- 20 4,748 6,412 - - 11,180
- 1,893 13,329 90,357 35,068 - 140,647
5526 9,332 7,786 1,855 125 - 24,624
42,306 61,349 115,721 315,626 238,545 113,914 887,461
- 28,240 - - - - 28,240
- 16 161 950 201 - 1,328
- - 4,427 10,135 42,103 - 56,665
- 64,633 193,504 176,137 175,009 - 609,283
44 894 1,224 2,013 4,408 19,086 27,669
8,112 - - 2 - - 8,114
- 51 152 779 3,254 - 4,236
10,778 24,627 8,451 1,788 52 - 45,696

18,934 118,461 207,919 191,804 225,027 19,086 781,231
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EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

oOoOooodn
2014 12 31
/ -
12 -

32,816 6,503 - - - - 39,319
- 2 12 5 - - 19
- 3,441 18,518 93,491 230,159 - 345,609
- 256 158 1,192 624 - 2,230
- 2,893 14,393 61,272 59,137 - 137,695
- 292 3,967 31,027 170,398 - 205,684
- - - 20,300 2,500 69,837 92,637
4,201 10,480 2,692 1,033 69 - 18,475
- 5,402 12,713 4,939 3,066 - 26,120
- 550 27,199 139,131 17,112 - 183,992
- 16 1,170 8,754 - - 9,940
- 4,171 11,681 62,694 42,271 - 120,817
7,738 7,643 9,149 5,612 - - 30,142
44,755 38,208 83,134 335,959 295,177 69,837 867,070
- 35,516 - - - 35,516
- - - - - 1
10 11 35 811 120 - 987
- - 1,635 14,756 54,313 - 70,704
- 63,466 162,084 186,536 125,511 - 537,597
67 990 1,041 669 1,936 20,855 25,558
7,966 - - - - - 7,966
- 51 152 783 3,462 - 4,448
9,578 20,633 6,850 2,132 86 - 39,279

17,621 120,667 171,798 205,687 185,428 20,855 722,056
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€)

VaR
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OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
oOoOooodn

2015 12 31

( )
43,456 1,614 4,790 24 49,884
8 - - - 8
231,071 - 1,076 - 232,147
121,783 2,562 930 - 125,275
18,106 40 3,359 53 21,558
25,243 79 1,207 13 26,542
144,657 - 3,440 - 148,097
9,914 - - - 9,914
110,485 - - - 110,485
24,214 17 322 15 24,568
728,937 4,312 15,124 105 748,478
28,231 - - - 28,231
980 - - - 980
39,210 - - - 39,210
505,111 745 1,782 48 507,686
27,601 - - - 27,601
8,114 - - - 8,114
2,990 - - - 2,990
43,239 80 2,342 35 45,696

655,476 825 4,124 83 660,508
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EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

OooooOodd

2014 12 31

( )
33,004 3,220 3,049 34 39,307
23 - - - 23
234,248 648 1,009 - 235,905
90,214 1,761 662 - 92,637
14,884 80 3,458 53 18,475
24,696 88 1,051 22 25,857
159,898 - 4,504 6 164,408
9,346 - - - 9,346
98,130 - - - 98,130
21,521 12 363 12 21,908
685,964 5,809 14,096 127 705,996
35,488 - - - 35,488
2 - - - 2
687 - - - 687
47,914 - - - 47,914
476,629 248 1,704 59 478,640
25,520 - - - 25,520
7,966 - - - 7,966
2,862 - - - 2,862
36,751 111 2,390 27 39,279

633,819 359 4,094 86 638,358
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VaR

99

EDINETOOOO

OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

2015 12 31
497 725
(497) (725)
2014 12 31
571 775
(571) (775)
10
VaR
12 31
2015 2014
758 1,286

196/358
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VaR

VaR

10

20

EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
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99 VaR
VaR
10
10
12 31
2015 2014
4,713 3,150
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OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
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45.

2015 2014 2015 2014
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
49,884 39,307 49,884 39,307
28,734 15,610 28,734 15,610
768 1,942 768 1,942
8 23 8 23
96,038 53,614 96,038 53,614
106,348 109,714 106,348 109,714
125,031 124,249 135,899 124,140
21,558 18,475 21,558 18,475
148,097 164,408 148,097 164,408
9,914 9,346 9,914 9,346
110,485 98,130 121,760 102,721
24,568 21,908 24,568 21,908
721,433 656,726 743,576 661,208
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OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
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2015 2014 2015 2014
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
- 2 - 2
28,231 35,488 28,231 35,488
980 687 980 687
39,210 47,914 44,337 51,376
27,601 25,520 27,601 25,520
8,114 7,966 8,114 7,966
45,696 39,279 45,696 39,279
149,832 156,856 154,959 160,318

199/358
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EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
oOoOooodn

@

2015 2014
12 31 12 31

8 23
- 2
36 3
732 1,939

20,571 21,596
85,777 88,118

28,734 15,610

68,951 49,000

9,365 3,614

3,013 1,000

548 -

14,161 20,300
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OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

Ogoooood
2015 12 31 6,122
2014 14,965
4,686 2014
(b)
2015 12 31

( )
3,126 132,773 135,899
- 121,760 121,760
- 44,337 44,337

2014 12 31

( )
7,454 116,686 124,140
- 102,721 102,721
- 51,376 51,376

©
( ) 2015 12 31 2014 12 31

21,300 20,300
1,766 -
4,595 1,000
(9,939) -

17,722 21,300

201/358



107

27

46.

@
€Y

) 1996 1998

®

)

2015

10,361

50
/121

202/358

EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

ooooood
2014 20,300

/
2014 12 31 287 /317



EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)

ooooood
(b)
@
( ) 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
2,466 1,434
@)
2015 12 28 Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft jr. & Cie. AG & Co.
Sal. Oppenheim jr. & Cie. AG & Co. Kommanditgesellschaft auf
Aktien S_A. Deutsche
Bank Luxembourg S.A.
877 267
992 2,136,045,885 19.99
230 257
3
()
10 27
2015 2014
( ) 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
305 192
446 237
81 111

832 540
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10
2015 2014
( ) 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
463 287
920 748
271 231
1,654 1,266
47.
@
25
(b)
( ) 2015 2014
718 928
- 26
177 202
300 580
579 205
53 55
1,182 952

129 146
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2015 2014
( ( )
9,300 10,332
- 15,145
2,209 3,938
11,509 29,415
12
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
376 5,369
3,115 3,115
460 427
10,361 20,300
700 814
- 294
146 202
15,158 30,521
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
344 344
2014 12 31 20,300
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
2,411 2,405
51 51
2,462 2,456
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
7,323 3,796
519 2,035
7,248 5,175
124 548
2,346 1,766
81,318 81,088
4,681 4,259
1,191 1,141
184 190

25 30

69 71

711 3,450
105,739 103,549
60 345
15,973 15,963
2,990 2,862
1,346 1,596
20,369 20,766
42,424 42,424
42,946 40,359
85,370 82,783
105,739 103,549
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49.
2015
*
2015 42,424 19,925 1,063 802 11,672 - 6,897 82,783
- - - - - - 2,987 2,987
/
¢ ) _ _ 274 - - (693) 421 2
- - 274 - - (693) 3,408 2,989
- - - 299 - - (299) -
- - - - - - (402) (402)
2015 12 31 42,424 19,925 1,337 1,101 11,672 (693) 9,604 85,370
2014
*
2014 42,424 19,925 271 579 11,672 5,625 80,496
- - - - - 2,231 2,231
/C ) - - 792 - - (384) 408
- - 792 - - 1,847 2,639
- - - 223 - (223) -
- - - - - (352) (352)
2014 12 31 42,424 19,925 1,063 802 11,672 6,897 82,783
*
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Notes s 2014
Cifoss wiiten premiims 5 I8 387 349,169
Less: Premiums ceded o reinsurers -] (31,255 (32,788)
Met wrirlen premiums 5 357,122 316,381
Change in uneamed premium reserves 3 (74821) (10,767}
Net earmed premiums Mean 305614
Remsumnce commission mosme 9678 10,109
[nvestmient imoome [ H336 33426
Other income 7 2,686 2347
TOTAL INCOME 406,011 351 4%
Life insurance death and other benefits pid g3 95428
Claims incurred 151,654 162,107
Clanges in long-term life insurnce contract Habilities 9,138 {2,174)
Policyhaldar dividends 4,149 4152
Clafms and policyhobler's benefits: b 257,290 239,713
Less: chains and policybolders” benehis coded 1o rnsurers ] {21,147 {20,953}
Mt claims and policybolders” benefits 8 266,143 238,760
Handling charges and commissions 35963 26,464
Finance costs ] 4,603 5,053
Exchange gnins (632) i)
Other operating and adminmistrative expenses 10 T2ASS H3,678
TOTAL BENEFITS, CLAIMS AND EXPENSES ITe532 REER
Share of profits and losses-of msociates and join ventures 6,491 5,845
PROFIT BEFORE TAX I 33970 13420
Imeome (X expenss 14 B.305) (4.705)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 27,665 18,715
Attributable 10;
Equity holders of the parent 19,542 13,109
Mon-controlling interests 123 3,604
27.665 18,715
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (in RMB)
— Basic i5 0,46 031

Tha People's Insurance Corpany [Group) of China Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For m ymar wncked 31 Doecembor 2015
Aoty i malions of Renmenly, uniess olfwisss shisfoc)

Notes s 2014
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 17,665 18,715
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
[tzms that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Available-for-sale financial assels
~ Fair value gains 19345 13972
~ Reclassification of gains to profit of loss on disposals By {11,949) {2,714}
~ Impairment losses By 165 1.655
Income tax effect
~ Fair volue gains {d,700) {1.967)
~ Reclnssification of gains to profit or loss on disposals 2,986 389
~ Impairment lesses (38) (ERT)
5800 11,154
MNet (bosses ) pains on cash low hedges {13 15
Income tix ¢ffect 1 k] (4}
(10 11
Exchange differcices on translating forelgn operntions 62 12
NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME MAY
BE RECLASSIFIED T PROFIT OR LOSS IN
SUBSEQUENT PERIODS 861 11,177
[tems that will not be reclassified so profit or loss:
Gaims on revaluation of propertics and prepaid land
Premilms upan trmnsfer 1o inyvestment propertics X7 428 2
Income tnx offect il {107} {110y
an i
Actuarinl losses on pension benefit obligation 39 (272 {384
NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOMEAEXPENSE)
WILL 3OT BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR LOSS
IN SUBSEQUENT PERIODS 49 (52)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 5010 11,125
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR JA5875 20,840
Antribatable 1o:
~ Equity holders of the pareid 13867 21434
~ Mon-controlling interests 9,708 £.A406
3575 0,540
Arvual Foporl 2015 104
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Al 3T Docwenbar 2015
fAmounds in mifions of Renminiy, unkess ofbenwise st

3 December 31 December

Notes W15 2014
ASSETS
Caish and cxeh equivalents 17 49,854 39,307
Denvative financial assels 18 ] )
Dbt securities 1% 132147 235,005
Equity securities, mutual furds and trust schemes ) 115275 02637
Insurnce receivables, net i 11,558 18475
Relnsirance nssets »nn 26,542 15,857
Term deposits. n 148,097 164,40
Restncied statutory deposits 9914 4.8
Investmeims classified & loins and receivalles M 110,485 8,130
Inwestments in associnies and joint ventones 26 53308 36,128
Investment properties 7 10,358 10,582
Property and cquipment po 13,095 21,59
Intangible asscts % 1,005 B8
Prepadd land premiums 3 101 3002
Deferred tax assets 3l 11251 1. {088
Other assets 3z 15,600 23,937
TOTAL ASSETS R 468 782221
LIABILITIES
Securities sold under agreements 1o repurchase H 18,231 35488
Denvative financial habalities 18 2
Income fnx payable 37 979
Duse b0 banks aned other financial mstitutions 35 LR HE7
Subondinated debis £ 9210 47014
Insurance contract lahilities 37 507,686 478,640
Iivestrient contract Tabilities for policyholders Ik 174601 25,520
Policyholder dividends payable B114 7,904
Pension bemefit obligation £ 2,990 2,862
Delerred tax Habilities il 1455 als
Other Habilities EL] b6, 559 55,671
TOTAL LIABILITIES 656,273 650,644
FOUITY
Issued capital 41 42424 42424
Reserves 42 73677 0,157
Equity attributabile to equity holders of the parent 116,101 42,581
Non-controlling micrests 41,094 32 506
TOTAL EQUITY 157,195 125,577
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 843,468 TH2. 221

Tha People's Insurance Corpany [Group) of China Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Foor o yar anced 31 Docembor 2015
(Amaints i millons of Renrminky, unfiss othensiss siatec)

Notes s 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit befoee tax 33970 23420
Adpustments for;
Investment income 3 {44, 336) (13.428)
Exchange gains (632} ()
Share of profits and losses of associstes and
Jolni veniuges {6,491) (5.545)
Depreciation of propeny and equipment .28 FRE] 2.567
Amortisation of intangible assets 1.2 147 13
Amartisation of prepaid land premiums 1. M 158 131
Dispesal gins from mvestment propenses,
propery and equipment, intangibbe mssers
and prepaid tond premiams 7 (12 7
Finance costs except for interests crodited to
pokicyholdens 9 3404 AL
Impanrement losses (8] 703 504
Investment expenses 122 6l
Oiperating cash flows before working capital changes {10,845 (8, T03)
Decrease/{increass) m insurance receivables, nei {3.403) 1.770
Increase/{decrense) in imvestment contract liabalitics
for policvholders 2081 {16,120}
Incretes in inswrance contract liabilides, net 18361 18,219
Decreasef{increass) in oiher assels, et {329) 1275
Increase in other liabilities and accruals, net 11,224 1867
Cazh penemted from operations 17089 4318
[noime tax paid (6.048) (4.717)
Mt cash Fronmused in) operating activities 2,441 (399}
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interests receivid 217811 25,641
Dividends received 6,195 3.631
Deecrease in palicy loans 1.258 1,600
Capital pxpenditures {3,551) {3,504)
Proceeds from disposals of mvestment properties,
property and equipment, intangible asscts
and prepasd land premisms 389 24
Imvestmenis in associates and joint veniures (11,539) (2,805)
Purchases of mvestments (278, 465) (212 668)
Proceeds from disposals of imvestments 152,495 227430
Payments for ivvestment expenses (223) (161}
Deerease{ meresse) in lenm deposits, net 16,531 (26,T75)
et cash from investing activities 10,912 4,183

Arvusnl Fisport 2005
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For o yar ancied 31 Docenbor 2075
{Amounts it milfons of Rervminty, uniess olhenwse siefod)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The People's lnsurmice Company (Growp) of China Limited (the “Company™) was established on 23 August
1506 in the People’s Repablic of China (the “PRC) and nis registered office is located a1 Mo, 69, Dongheyan
Street, Nuarmwu District, Betjing 100052, PRC. The Company’s predecessar, the People’s Insumnce Company
of Chifidi, s a state-owived enterprise established on 20 October 1949 by the PRC povernment. The ultimsile
cortrolling pamy of the Company is the Minksry of Finance of the PR (“MOF)

The Company i an imvessment holding company. During the year ended 31 December 2005, the Company”s
subsacdiories mainly provided mecgrated financinl products and services and were engaged in propeny and
casualny (“P&C™) imsumnce, life and health Insurance, asser management and other businesses. The Company
and s subsidiaries are collectively referred 1o as the “Group™

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The comsolidated financial ststements have been peepared in sccordance with Intemational Finoncaal Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs™) which comprise all standards and Interpretations approved by the Intemational Accounting
Sundards Boand ("IASBT) and the disclosures required by the Rules Geverning the Listing of Securities
(T Asting Budes™) on The Sieck Exchange of Hong Kong Lmited (the “Hong Kong Sieck Exchange™) and Hong
Kong Companbes Crdinance (*C0")

The disclosure requirements set out i the Listing Rules negarding anmual accounts have been amenadesd with
reference 1o the new CO regarding preparation of sccoumts and dinectors” repons and sudits and 1o streamling
with IFit 55 Accordingly the presentation and disclosone of information in the consalidabed financinl statements
for the fimancial year ended 3| December 2015 have been changed 1o comply with these new' requirements.
Comyparative information m respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2004 are preseated or disclosed
i the consolidated Ninancial statements basod on the new reguinements. Informetion previowsly reguired o be
disclosed under the predecessor €O or Listing Rules but not undes the new C0 or amended Listing Rules ane not
disclosed in these consclidated financial starements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidnted financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis, exceps for imvestment
properties, cenuin financial instruments and insurance contract labilities. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“EMBT) o all values are rounded 1o the nearest million except when
atherwise indicated.

Historical cost is generally based on the fir value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services,

APPLICATIONS OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs

The Group has adopted the following amendments to [FRSs. for the first time effective for the current year's
financial statements,

Amendments io [IAS 19 Defined Beneli Pl Enpilover Comtribtitinny
Amendments 1o IFR.Ss Awmmadd fmprovesenis fo IFRSy 2000-200 2 Cyvele
Amendments o IFRSs Amnad fimprovements ro (FRESs 200 1-2600 3 Coele

Mone of the above amiendments to [FRSs, however, have had a materin] impact on the financial pasition or
performance of the Groop for the year ended 31 December 2015,

Arvusnl Fisport 2005
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear anded 31 Decembaer 2015
JAmounts in millons of Renmnd, unlass ofhanyise siadad)

24 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs foantimued)
IFRS 9 - Finaneial Instromenis (commped)

Key requirements of [FRS 9 are described below:

Al recognised Anancial asscts that dre within the sope off 1AS 39 Fmancial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are required (o be subsequently measuned at mmortised cost or @ic valoe. Specifically, debe
investmems that are held within a business model whose objective ks 1 collect the contracial cash flows,
and that hove contractual eash Mows that are solely payments of prncipal and interest on the principal
outstanding are penerally measured ot amonised cost ar the énd of subsequent dccounting periods.
Ixebi Enstruments that are held within o business model whose objective is achicved both by collecting
comractunl cash flows and selling financial assets, and thae have contractual terms of the financinl asser
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and imenest on the pincipal
amouiy! outstanding, are measured at FVTOCL Al other debit investmens and equity invesiments jing
megzsared at their fuir vidue 21 the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addimon, under [FRS 9, entities
may metke an imevocable election to present subsequent changes in the falr value of an equity investment
(that is not held for rding) in other compechensive income, with only dividend income gencrally
recagnised in profil or loss.

s With regard 10 1the measuremem of financial liabilnies designated as @ fair value through profit or loss,
IFRS 9 requirés that the amount of change m the falr value of the financial Rability that is sttnibugable
1 changes in the credin risk of that lishility B presemed in other comprebensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk i other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch (n profit or loss, Changes in fafe value of financial liabiliies
atiributable 1o changes in the fnancinl liabalities’ credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
livis, Linder 1AS 39, the entine mmount of the change in the Gair valise of the Gnencial lability designated as
fair vatue through profit or loss was presented in prodit or loss.

*  Inrelation (o the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requines an expected credit loss moded, as opposed
1o an incurmed credit boss mindel under 1AS 39, The expected credit loss model requires an entity 10 acoount
for expected credit bosses and changes in those expected credin bosses at cach reporting date 1o neflect
changes in credit risk since iniial recognition. In other words, it is no lbnger necessary for 3 credit event 1o
have occurred before credit lossey are recognised.

" The new general hedge accoumting requiremenis refain the three types of hedge accounting. However,
greater flexibility hus been inroduced o the ypes of msactions eligible for bedge sccounting.
specifically broadening the types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk
companents. of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectivencss
test has been overhauled and replaced with the principle of &n ‘economic relationship®, Retrospective
assessment of hedpe effectiveness is alse no lenger required. Enhanced disclosure requirements shout an
entity”s risk management activities hove also been introduced.

Application of IFRS @ in the futune may have n material impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group's
finoncial agsets and financial liabilitics. Howcever, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable catimate of that
effioct antal a detaibed review has been comipleted.

Arvual Foporl 2015 109
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decembar 2015
fAmounds in miions of Renminbl, wnkess othanvse siafed)

24 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs foantimued)
IFRS 15 - Revenwe fron Contracis with Customers

In July 2014, IFRS 15 was issued whach establhes a simgie comprehensive model for entities o use in
acvounting for revenue ansing from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the cument revenue
recopnition guldance meloding IAS 18 Revenee, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations
wicn it beoomes effective.

The core pranciple of IFRS 15 15 that an entity ghould recognise revemse o depict the transfer of promised poods
OF Services to customens in an amount that reflects the considermtion to which the emtity expects to be entithed
in exchange for those poods or services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a S-step approach to revenie
FECOERITIN;

Step | Mentify the contract(s) with 3 customer

Step 2: dentify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4 Allocase the transaction price (o the performance oblipations in the conact
Step 5: Recognise revenus whan (or az) the entity satisfies o performance obligation

= & & & =

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) o performance obligaton is satisfied, i.2. when
‘goatrol" of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is tmnsferred to the customer.
Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in [FRS 15 10 deal with specific sconarios; Furthemmore,
extersive disclosures ane required by [FRS 15

The dircctors of the Company anticipate that the apphcation of IFRS 15 10 the future may have a matenal mpace
on the amounts reponel and disclosures made in the Gromp’s consoludated financial statements. However, it
is not practicable fo provide a reasonable estimate of the cffect of [FRS 15 imiil the Group performs a detailed
FEVIEW,

IFRS 16 - Leases

IFRS 16 introduces o comprehensive model for the identification of lease armngements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. It distinguishes leases and service contracts on the basis whether an
idemified asset is controfled by o customer, Subject 1o limited exceptions for shon-teom Jeases and low volue
assety, distinctiens of operating and finance leases are removid for lessee accounting, and is replaged by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a comesponding liability have to be recognised for all beases by lessees. However,
the standard docs not significantly change the scoounting of lessors.

Application of IFRS 16 may result-in the Group®s recognition of right-of-ase assets and corresponding 1abilities
i respect of certain lease armngements, These assets and Habilities currendly are not required o be recognised
bt certain relevant information is disclosed a5 commitments to these financial statements. Apart from this, the
derectors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of [FRS 16 in the future will have a material
mmpesct on the Grow's consolidated financial stieemens,

110 The Pecple's Insursnce Company [Growp) of Ghina Limtted
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear anded 31 Decembaer 2015
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24 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs foantimued)
Amendments 1o LAS 1| — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments 1o 1AS | grve some guidance on bow 1o apply the concept of materialiny in practice.

The amembments also require separate disclosures for the following fems i the cther comprehensive income
section of a statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive moome:

¢ The share of otlser compeehensive incomse of assocutes and join? ventures accounted for wseng the equity
methosd that will not be reclassified subsequently 1o profit or losss and

*  The share of other comprehensive incomse of assocaates and joint venures aceomped for wsing the equity
methosd that will be reclassified subsequently 1o profit or loss,

The mdoption of amendment 10 IAS 1 may streamline disclosures of the financial stasements. In pddition,
currenily, the share of other comprebensive income of associates and joint ventures i combined with the

Girowp's other compreehensive income by nate for presentation. [t will be separately presented on sdoption of
this amendment. Apart from this, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that the applicaion of thess
ameralments in the fuure will have a manerial impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
Amendments to LAS 7 - Disclosure Initiative

The amendments reduine an ertity o provide disclosones that enable users of fingncial statements to evaluale
changes m liobilitics arsing from financing activitics, inclisding bodh changes arising from cash Tows and
nor-cash changes. The amendments do not define financing activities, instead they clanfy that financing
activities are based on the existing definition used in [AS 7.

The directors of the Company do not ankcipate that the application of these amendments in the flture will have
a marerinl impact on the Group's consolidated financial swsemems apan from the additonal disclosunes requined
by this pmsendmient which will be made to the financial ststements upon adoption of this amendment 1o [AS 7,

15 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(1} Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financia! statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and entities
{including structurcd entitics) controlled by the Company and 15 subsidiarics. Comred is achicved when
ihe Company:

+  has power over the investee;

+ dsexposed, or has rights, 1o voriable retums from its involvement with the investee; and

" has the shility b0 s its power to affect s netums,

The Group reassesses whether or nol it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes 10 one or more of the three elemients of control Hsted above.

Arvrwanl Risport 2015 111
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decembar 2015
fAmounds in miions of Renminbl, wnkess othanvse siafed)

15 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES foentained
{1} Basis of consolidation (conpmned

Wihsen the Group hos less than o majonty of the votmg nghts of an mvestes, it has power over the investee
when the voting nghts ane sufficient to give it the practical abality (o direct the relevant activites of the
investee umilaterally. The Groap considers all relevant facts aind circumstances in asswessing whelber or ot
the Group's voling rights o an mvestee ane sullickent (o give it power, inchodang:

s b sizeof e Group's holding of voaing nghes relative io the siee and dispersion of boldings of the
other vate holders;

s potemtial voting rights held by the Group, other vore holders or otlser pames;
& rights arising from other contrmctisl arangements: and

= any additional fects and clrcumstances that indicate that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decigions need to be mude, inchuding voting
paterms at previoas shareholders' mestings.

Conaolidntion of n subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and cepses
when the Company loses control of the subsidiary, Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
scquired or disposed of during the vear are included in the consolidaged income siensent and stpement of
comprehensive mcome from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company censes
1o control the subsicdiary,

Frofit or bess and cach component of other comprehensive incoine e atinbuted to e owners of the
Company and to the non-conirelling inerests. Total comprebensive income of subsidiaries is armibutzed o
thie owners of the Company and o the non-contralling interests even if tis results in the noa-comtrolling
interests having a deficic halance,

When necessary, adjustments ane made 1o the lnancial statements of subsidianes 1o bring their accounting
pedicies into line with the Group's accounting policies,

All iniragroup assets and labilimics, equity, income, expensss and cash flows reluing 10 irmnsactions
etween members of the qu: are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Clrangies in the Graoip s sharelolders ieteresn in exisring subuidiorie

Changes in the Giroup’s ownership imterests in exasting subsidiarics that do not result in the Group losing
control ever the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The camrying smounts of the Group's
interests and the pon-controlling interests are adjusted o reflect the changes in their relative intenests in the
subsidianes. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests pre adjusted and
the fuir value of the consideration paid or received is recognised direcily in equity and attributed 10 owners

of the Company,

112 The Pecple's Insursnce Company [Growp) of Ghina Limtted
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L5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feomtiamedt
{1} Basis of consolidation (conpmned
Clramges in i Growp's shoreholders ' imfereves in existing swbsidiories feomsinued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recogrised m profi of boss and 15 calculabed
as the difference between (1) the apgregste of the fur valoe of the consideration recesved and the Fir
value of any retalned interest and () ihe previous camying nmount of the assets (inchuding goodwill), and
lighlities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests; All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary ane accounted for as if the Growp had directly disposed
of the related assets or labilities of the subsidiary, which is reclassified 1o profit or loss or transferred 10
another category of equity a8 specified/permined by applicable [FRS< The fir value of any imvestment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair valug on inkial
recognition fof sulsequent accounting under LAS 39, o, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an EVESIMEnt in an ESscCiale o & join venture,

(2} lovestment in gssociies and joint ventures

At ssociaee fs mn entity over which the Group has significant influesce. Sigmificant influence is e power
fo participate in the financial and operating policy dectsions of the imvesice but is not conirol or joint
comrol over those policies.

A joind vemine & i jolnt armngeneil wherehy the parties that have jeint control of the amingement lave
rights 10 the net assets of the joint arrangement, Joint control ks the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an armangement, which exists only when decisions aboat the relevant activities requine unanimons
consent of the parties sharing control.

The resulis and assets and liabdlishes of associales or jolnt ventures are incorporabed n these consolidaied
financial statements using the equity method of sccounting. Under the equiny method, an invesiment in
an associate or 3 joim venture i initially recognised in the consolidated satement of financial position af
eost and adjusted thereafter i recognise the Group's shane of the profil or loss and other comprehensive
mgome of the associte or joint ventune, When the Group’s share of losses of an associate of o joing
vemure exceeds the Group's imerest in that associate or jomt vemture {(which inchudes any long-term
interests 1hat, in subsiance, form pan of the Group®s pet investment in the associate of joint venture), the
Grroup discontimues recogrising s share of further losses, Additional losses are recognised only b0 the
extent thai the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behall” of the
AS30CIALE OF [OATE Venture,

An investment in an associate or & print venture is accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the invesice becomes an associae or a joint veniore, On acquisition of the mvestment in an
associate of & joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group®s share of the net fair
value of the identifizble assets and lisbilities of the invesice is recognised os goodwill, which is included
within the carmying anwunt of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets ond liahilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immedintely in profit or boss in the period in which the investment is acquined.
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feontmnedt
{2}y lmvestment in sssociates wod joint venfures foomtinued)

When the Group mereases its ownership inberests nan associate or @ pont venture amd the investee
comtinues to be pocounted for ns an associale or o jomt venture, any excess of the cost of this additional
investiment over the Group's additional share of the net fair vilue of the entifiable asscts and labilides
of the investee (measured as at the daite of the sddimonal ivestment) 15 recogmised us goodwill, which s
included within the carryling amount of the imvestment, Any excess of the Group®s additional share of the
net fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities (mexsured as af the date of the additional mvestment)
over the cost of the additional invesiment, afler renssesament, is recognised immediately in profit o
loss i the period m which the additional mvestment is scquired. There is no re-measurement of the
carrying amount of the previously bell ownership interesis in the associate or the jin1 venture. nor of
the fair valoe of the net identifiable assets and the resulting goochwill mtributable o the previously held
interests in the associate of the joint vemure. Any gain of ks recognised in other compreleisive income
previously shared by the Group remains in the equity and 15 not reclassafied 1o the profit or loss. The Group
commences sccounting for its share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associaie
or the joint venture gcoosding 1o the new propomionate equity imterests when the additioral ownership is
acquired.

The requirernents of IAS 39 are applied 1o determing whether it 1 pecessnry w recognise any impairment
lovss wiith respect to the Group®s investment in an associate or 3 joint venture, When pecessary, the entire
carrying amaunt of the mvestment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with 1AS 36
Impainment of Asscts as a singhe asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in wse and Gir
value less costs of disposal) with s camying amount. Any impairment loss recopnised forms pan of the
earrying mmount of the nvestment. Any reversal of that impaimment loss is recopnised in sccondance with
IAS 36 bo the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequenly increises,

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when the invesiment ceises 10 be
an associate of 8 joind venture, or when the investment is classified as held for sale. When the Group
retains an intercst in the former associabe o joint venture and the retainsd imerest is o financial asset,
the Group measurcs the netained inferest ot fir valoc o that date and ihe fair vadue s regarded as iis fir
value on mitial recognition in accordance with IAS 39, The difference between the carrying amoumt of
the associnle or joint venture of the dste the equity method was discontimeed, and the fair value of any
retaingd imerest and any proceeds from dispesang of o pam interest in the asseciate or joinl venre is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint vennare. In addition.
the Group sccoumts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation 1o
that associate or joint ventisre on the same hasis as would be required if that sssociane or joint venture had
directly disposed of the related =ssets or liabilities, Therefore, if o’ gain or loss previously recognised in
other eomprehensive income by that associnie or joint venkure would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
dispozal of the related assets or lizbilities, the Ciroup reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or
lowss (s a reclassification adjostment) when the equity method is discontinued.

The Group contimses o use the equity method whien an investment in an associate becomes an investmeni
N @ o4 VEACUSg OF 40 IVESIEnt in & joint venture bocomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership intergsis,
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feontmnedt
{2}y lmvestment in sssociates wod joint venfures foomtinued)

When the Group reduces i1s ownsership interest in an associie o o joint vestare bt the Group continues
tov s the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gam or loss that had
previously been recopniied m other comprebensive income nelating to that reduction in awnership inberest
i it im0 Joss would be reclesifid 1o profit o loss on the disposal of the related assets or Dabilites,

Wiken o group entity iransacts with an associite or a joinl ventune of the Group, profits ond losses resulting
from the tmnsctions with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's consolidited
financial staternents only to the extent of ienzses in the associate or point venure that are not related to the

Giroug.

(3} Cash and cash sguivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents compnise cash
on hand and demund deposits, and shon-ierm highty lguid investrents that are readily convertible o
known amourts of cash, which are sabject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a shore
maturity. of generally within theee mondhs when scquired, less bank ovenldmits which are repayable
on demand and the amounts of cash resiricted as to ose and form an insegral pari of the Growup's cash

management.

{4} Foreign curreney translation

The Groop's preseatation currency is the RMIB, which is also the functonal currency of ithe Company and
s doinestic subsidiaries,

Each entity in the Group delermines jts own functional currency and items included in the financial
statemients of each entity are recorded using that functional curmency. Forcign curmency transactions
recarded by the entities in the Group are initinlly recorded in their respective functional curmency asing
exchange mies prevailing ol the dates of the tmnssctions. Monetury assets and liabilities denomingied
in foreign currencies ore ranslated s the exchange mfes prevailing st the el of the repoating perind.
Exchange differences arising on the setilement of monctary items, and on the retranslation of monctary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for (i) exchange differences:
arising on o meaetary iem that forms part of the Group's net investment in a foreign operation, in which
case, such exchange differences are recopnised in other comprehensive incosme and accumulated in equity
and will be reclassified from equity i profil or kss on disposal of ihe foreign operation; (i} exchange
differences arising from the changes of the fuir value of monctary assets classifisd as available-for-sale
financial assets (other than the changes relating 1o the amortised cost of the monetary assets) which are
recagnised in other comprehensive and accunudated in equity.
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES foentained
{4)  Foreign currency trunshation (comtinued)

Non-monetary tens that are messured in terms of histoncal cost m a foregn currency are wranskated using
the exchange mies a1 the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured ot fair valoe ina
foreipn cumency ane translited using the exchange mies @ the date when the fr valoe was determined.
The gain or loss arsing on tmaslaton of a non-anonetry tem measured at far value s treated m line with
the recognition of the galn or loss on change in falr valie of the flem (i.e.. mansiiton difference on the
item whose fair valise gain or loss iz recogaised in other comprehensive income of profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive Income or profit or koss, respectively),

The functional currencies of cenain foreign operanons are currencees other than the RMB. As a1 the end of
the reporting periosd, the asssts and liahilites of these entities ane translated Mo the presentation cismency
of the Groisp at tse exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their income slemens
are transkated o RMB at the weighted overape exchange rates for the year.

The resulting: exchange differences are recognised i other comprelensive income and accumulated in
the foreign exchinge reserve. On disposal of o foreign operation, the component of ofher comprehensive
income relating fo that particular fereign operation is récognised in the income siatemen.

For the purpose of the consclidaied statement of cash Mows, the cash flows of foreign operations arc
translated into RMB 3t the exchange raes maling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurnng cash
flows of foreign operations which arise throughom the year are irmnsbied into BRMB at the weighted
avernge exchange rtes for the year.

(5)  Financial xsets
Fritial recangnition amd measirenent
Financipl assets within the scope of 1A3 39 are clasified as financinl assets at fair value throagh profis
or boss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and avaibable-for-sale financisl assets, or as
derivatives designated s hedging mstruments in an effective hedge, os appropriate. The Group determines
the classification of its financial assets ot initial recognition.

When financial assets are recognissd initially. they are measured ab fGur valoe, plas ransaction costs,
except in the case of financin] xssets recorded at fair valee through profii o loss:

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchasing or selling the asses. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets require delivery of assets within (he peniod generally cstablished by regulation or
comvention in the marketplace.
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES foentained
{5)  Financial assets (comgmned)

Subsequens measurenent
The subsequent measurement of fnancial asscts depends on their class hcation as follows:
Financiol acsers af foir valee thaiglh profie or foc

Financial assets at fur value through profit or loss inchade financial assets held for rading and financial
assets desipnated upon mdtial recognition as at fair vabie through profit or loss. Financial assets are
clasfied s held for mading if they are acquired for the purpose of sabe in the near e Denvatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are always measired =t falr value through profit or loss anless
they are desipnated s effective hedping instruments o= defined by 1AS 39,

Financial asseis at fair value theough profit or less are carried In the statement of financial pesition at Gir
value with net chunges in fuir value presented as invesoment income in the income. statement. These pet
fuir value changes do not inclisde any dividends or interest eamed on these financia] assets, which are
recognised in dcoondance with the policics set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial mssets designated at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.

Drerivatives embedided {1 host contracts are accounied for as sepamie derivatives and recorded a Gair value
if their economic charscteristics ond risks are ot closely relnted to those of the host contracts and the
Bt contrscts are m held for rading or designated at fair value through profit or [oss, These embedded
derivatives are measured at fhir valive with changes in fair value recognised in the income staiement.
Reassessment only occurs if there i a change i the 1emos of the conract that significamly modifies the
cash flows that would otherwise be requined.

Avarifndobe-foor-sale financiol assers

Available-for-zale financinl assets are non-dertvatives that are either designated as available-for-sake or
are mod classified s Inans and receivables, held-io-maturity investments or financial assets at fair value
through profit or los.

Measured at fair value

Adfter initial recogmition, available-for-sake fmancial assets are subsequently measured at foir valoe with
unrealised gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale financial
asset revalustion reserve until the ssset i derccognised or impaired, o0 which time the cumulntive gains
or bmses previsusly recognised m other comprehensive income are reclassificd to profit o loss, Interess
and dividends camed whilst holding the available-for-sale financial assets are reported a5 investmeni
memme, respectively and ane recognised m the mcome sttement in accondance with the policies sct out for
“Revenue recognition” below,
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES foentained
{5)  Financial assets (comgmned)

Subsequens measarenent feontinged)
Availairbe-for-sale fnancial asets feonfimued)
Measured al cost less impatrment

When the fair value of unlisted equity smvestments cannot be reliably measured because () the variability
ift the range of reasonable falr valee estimates is significant for that nvestment or (b) the probabilitics of
the various estimates within ihe range cannot be: reasonably assessed and wed in esumaing i value,
suich imvestments are stated at cost léss any impairment Ioses,

Lowmny avaf receivables

Lowns: and receivables are non-gerivative financial assets: with fixed or determingbde payments: that are
el caited in an active market. The Group®s financial assets that are classified is loans and recaivables
include cazh equivalents, ierms depasits, imesiments classified == loans and receivables and misceilaneous
recelvibles, Insurance receivables and policy Joans are ofso accoumted for as if they were loans and
recetvables, After inifial measarement, such assets are subsequenly measiered ot amontised cost, wsang the
effective imerest e meihod. less any llowance for impaimment. Amomised oo is cabeulued by tking
mio pccount any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that ane an integral pan of
the effective imerest mie method, The effective interest i included in nvestment income in the income
stalermenl.

Held-so-maturity fimanclol asies

Mon-denivative financial assets with fixed or determimable payments and fixed matunity are classified
&5 held 10 maturity when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold them to maturity, other
than those the entity designates as al finencial asscts at fair valoe thooagh prodit or boss, available-for-sale
fimamcial assets or thoese meeting the definition of kans and recelvables Held-wo-maturity invesiments
are subsequently mensured st amonised cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowanoe
for impairment. Amortised cost 15 caloulsted by tzking info acosunt any discount or premium on
acquisiiion and fées or costs that are an integral pan of the effective inberest mie. The effective mieres raic
ammartisation is included in the income sastemen. The loss anising from impainment is recognised in the
income statement

Derecognition of financial axsers

A finoncial asset (or, when applicable o par of 2 fnancial asset or pant of o growp of similar finencial
assets ) is derecopnised wheno

(o) he rights 1o reocive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

(b}  the Group has transfermed its rights o receive cash flows from the aseet or has zssumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in fill without matemal delay to a thind panty under a " pass-through™
armangement; and either: () the Group has tmnsfermed sabsantially all the risks and rewonds of the

msset; or (b) the Group hos neither tmnsferred nor retnined substartinlby all the risks ond rewards of
ihe asser, but has tmnsferred control of the sl
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L5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feontimned

{5)  Financial assets (comgmned)
Derecopmition of fimaeeial axsers foontinyed)

When the Groiip has' transferred 8 npht to receive cash Mows o an adsel of has entered into @ pass-
through armngement, i evalwites i snd o what exteot i has retained the nsk and rewards of ownership of
the aszzt. When bt has nelther imnsferred nor retined substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
tranesferred contral of the assel, the asset is recognsed to the extent of the Groap's continuing imolvement
in ke asset, In that case, the Growp also recognises an associated liabilny, The transferred asset and the
associated Hability are measured on a basis that reflects the nghts and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Contimiing invalvement that tkes the form of & guaramtes over the rnsfermed asset s measired at the
lower of the onginal camrying amowunt of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Ciroup coubl be required 1o repay.

Om derecognition of a finsncial asset i is entirety, the difference betwesn the asset’s carrying smount
and the sum of the considemtlon received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and necumulsted in equity is recognised in profit or loss,

On derecagnition of a financisl asse other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an cpion 1o
repurchase part of o transferred asset], the Group allocates the previous canrying amount of the financial
asset between the pan i continues o recognise under continuing imvolvement, and the pan it no longer
recognises on the basiz of the relative fair valees of thise parts on the dote of the transfer. The differenes
between the carrying amount allocated o the pan dist 5 oo longer recognised and the sum of the
considerntion received for the part no bnger recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it thal
had been recognized in ather comprehensive meome i recognised in profit or loss: A cumulative gan or
oss that had been recognised in other comprehensive incomse is allocated between the pan that continues
fio be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

(h)  Impairment of Mnanctal assets

The Giroup assesses At the end of the reponting period whether there is objective evidence that i financial
asset or group of financial sssets is impaired. A financial asset o a group of financial assets is deemed
10 be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impaimment a5 & result of one OF More events
that occurred afier the imitial recognition of the asset (an meurmed “loss event™) and that loss event has an
impsct cn the estimated funure cash flows of the financind asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably cstimated. Evadence of impainment may inclade ndications that a debitor or o group of debtors is
experiencing significant fimancial difficulty, default oo delinguency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankrapicy or other financial reorganisation and observable dats indicating
ihat there is @ measurable decrease in the estimateed future cash Mows, such s chunges i amears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaulis.
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feontmnedt
(&) lmpairment of Fnancial assets feonmmed)

Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-Tor-sale financial assets, the Group asscsses ol the end of the reposting periad whether there
15 obpective evidence that sn mvestiment o i group of investoients is unpained,

IF an available-for-sale asset i impazred, on amount comprising the difference between it cost (net of
any principal payment and amonization) and s cumrent fiir value, léss any impaiment los previousy
recognised in the income statement, is removed from other comprehensive income and recopnised in the
ineome stiEment.

The Enpakmment analysis and amounts recorded are based on the finctional currency of the group entity
holding the mvestment,

In the case of equity investments classified as pvaikable-for-sale, objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the far value of an investment below its cost, The desermination af
what is “significant” or “prolonged™ requires judgement. “Significant™ is evaluated ogains the original cosi
of the investment and “prolosped” agninst the pertod in which the fair value has been below ns original
cost. Where there s evidence of inmpairmicnt, the curmalative loss — measured as the difference between
the pogquisition cost and the cumem fuir value, less any impaiment loss on thar iwestment previoasly
recognised in the income statement — is reclassified from other comprehensive income and recognised
in the income sintement. Impalmment losses on equity Instruments classified as available-for-sale are
not reversed through the income statement. Increases in their fhir value after impairment are recognised
direcily in wiher comprehensive income.

I the case of debr insrumenis classified as avmlable-for-sale, impainment is assessed based on the same
criteria s financial assets camied st amonised cos described below. However, the amount reconded for
impairmcnt is the cumulative boss measured as the difference between the smortised cost and the current
fuir value, less any impairment loss on that investmend previgusly recognised in the income statemenl.
Future inlerest income contimess i be acorued based on the reduced carying amount of the assel and
is accrued using the rate of inferest used to discount the future cash Rows Tor the: parpose of measuring
the impairment loss, The interest income is recorded o5 part of investment income, Impaiment [oses on
debt msiruments are reversed through the income statement i the inenease in fair value of the instrumends
can be ohyectively relmed 1o an event occurring afier the impasment hoss was recognised in the income
satemmen

Finamciol assets corrfed af amorttsed cost

IF fimancial assets comed at smortised oost are impaired, the comying smount of the financinl asets is
reduoced to the presemt value of estimated fiture cash flows (excluding fsure credst losses that have not
been incurred) and the reduction s recopnised as an impairment [ass in the meome statement. The preseni
value of estimated fisure cash flows shall be caloubated with the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate and the related collaternl value shall also be tken into sccount, For financial msets with floating
interest rate, the present value of estimated future cash fows shall be caboulated with the effective interest
rate stipulated by the contract.
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES foentained
(&) lmpairment of Fnancial assets feonmmed)
Finameinl assets carried ar omortived cost feontimed)

For a financial asset that & individaally sigaificant. the Group asscsses the asset individually for
umpairment, and recogmses the amount of impairment in pofit or loss. For a fnancial assel that is not
indbichially significant, the Group assesses the asset individually for impairment or includes the sset
in o group of financial assets with similor credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. IF the Group determings that no olyective evidince of impairment éxists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether the financial asset is individually skgnificant or not, the fimancial asset is
included in a group of financinl assets with simikar cred risk charactenstics and collectively assessed for
impairment. Financial azsets for which an impairment [oss s individually recognised are not included in 8
collective assessment of Enpairment.

Adfler the Group recognises an fmpakrment loss of financial assets camod m amonssed cost, if there is
objective evidence thae the financial assets’ value restores and the restoration can be related cbjectively 1o
an event occurnng after the fmpaimment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss shall
be reversed and recognised in profit or boss. However, the reversal shall not resudi in a carrying amouni of
the financial asset that excesds what the amortised cost would have been a1 the date of the impairment’s
reversil had the impairment not been rocognised,

Finamcinl avets carried af coss

If there is objective evidence that an impairment Toss has Been incurred on an upnguoted equity instrument
thiat is pot carried at fair valise bocause ity Gair value carmol be reiably measired, or on @ derivative sssct
that is linked 1o and musi be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity nsimmment, the amount of the
loss 15 measured as the difference between the assea’s carrying amount and the present value of esimaoted
fusture cash flows discounted at the current market mte of retum for a similar financial asset, Impairment
losses om these assets are not reversed.

{7} Financial liabdlities

Trisial recargmition wrd measuresent

Financial liahilitics within the scope of 1AS 39 are classified o= financial liabilities ai fnir volue through
profit or loss, or cther financial linbilities a1 amonised cost as appropeiate. The Group determings the
classification of its fmancial liabilitics at initial recognition.

Financiad liabilitics are initally measued at fair value. Transaction costs that ane dinecily atiributable 1o the
issue of financial tiobilities {other than financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) dre deducted
from the fir valise of the finoncial liabilities on initind recognition. Transaction costs directly aiributable
fy the acquisition of Mmancial Habilitics at Tair value through profit or kiss are recognized immediately in
profit or los.
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES foentained
{7y Financial liabilities fcommamsed)

Subsequens measurenent
The subsequent measurement of financial lkabilities depends on their classification as follows:
Financiol Mabelities ai fir vahae theovgh peofit or foss

Financial Habilities at fair vakue through profit or loss inclede Anancial liabilities held for rading and
financial leabilitics designared upon initial recognition as at fuir value through profit or los.

Financinl lkahilities are clissified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the
near e, This category incldes derivative Mnancinl instriments émtered ino by the Group tal are mot
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships 0s defined by IAS 39, Separated embedded
dervatives are always mesxsured o fair value through profit or loss unless they are designated as effective
Iredging instnaments,

(iains or losses on liabiliies held for irading are recognised in the income staiement, The net fair value
gain of |oss recognised in the income stiement does not mclude any iverest charged on these finoncial
liphilities,

Financial liabilities designaied as fair value through profin or loss are designated ai the date of iniial
recognition and only if the criteria in 1AS 39 are sutisfied,

Finamgivl fabilitivs ot amoriised cost (nchalfmg interes-bearing borroaings)

Fimancial liabilives inchuding secunities seld under agreements o repurchase, amounts due fo banks
and other financial instindions, subordinsted debts, investment comract lishilities for policyholders,
miscellaneous payables and scenals are initially susied at fhir value less divectly aributable transaction
costs and are subsequently measured af amontised cost, using the effective inferest rale method unless
the effect of discomnting would be immaterial, in which case they nre stried s cost. The refated interest
expense is recognised in the income statement. Policyhodders” dividends and amounts due 10 reinsuners ane
accoumed for as i they were other financiz! liabilitics,

Gains and losses are recognised in the income sinement when the liabilities ane derecognised as well is
thraugh the smortisation process.

Derecognition of financial Gabilities

A fimancinl lability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
CApinss.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by snother from the same lender on substaminlly differens
terms, of the tenms of an cxisting liabdbiny ae substantially modificd, such an exchange or modification is

treated as o derscognition of the original lisbility and o recognition of a new liability, and the difference
betwieen the respective carmymg amoints &5 recognised in the moome statement.
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feontmnedt
{8)  Financial guarantee coniracts

Fmancial puarantee contracts sseed by the Group are those contracts thal requine a payrment 1o be made 1o
reimburse the holder for a loss i incurs because the specified debbor fails (o make o payment when dug in
sccordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

The Group has previously repganded cemain credit insurance comtracts {1 Bsued with a financial guaraniee
ebement as msurance conracts and has used the sccounting methods applicable 10 nsurasce contracts, and
accorclingly has edected to apply IFRS 4 to account For stuch contracts.

(%) Derivative financial instruments and hedee accounting

Initinl recognition g sufsequent sreasuroment

The Group uses denvative financial matruments, such as ilenest mic swaps, 1o hedge 118 interest mie nsk.
Such derivative financial instruments are inftially recognized at fir value on the dase on which a denvative
comract is cotered into and ane subsequently remeasered ot fir value. Derivatives are casried as assets
when the Bair vilise is positive and as liabilities when the fair value b negive,

Any gaing or losses ansing from changes in fair valoe of derivatives are 1aken directly o the
income stmement, excepd for the effective porion of cash flow hedges, which Is recognised in other
comprehensive income,

For the purposz of hedge accounting. hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure
fo vartability in cash fiows that is either atinbutable to o particular risk associnted with a recognised asset
or linhality or o highly probable forecast tmnsaction.

At the inception of & hedge relanonship, the Group formally designaes and documents the hedge
relationship 1o which the Group wishes 1o apply hedge accounting, the risk management objective and its
srwegy for underaking the hedge. The docunsemtation includes identification of the hedging nstument,
the hedged item or transaction, the natre of the sk being hedged and how the Group will assess the
hedging instrument’s effectivencss of changes in the hedging instumeni’s fair value i offseiting the
expasure 10 changes in the hedged ilem’s fair value or cash Mows atributable 10 the hedged risk, Such
hedges are expected to be highly effective in achizving offseting changes in cash fMows and are assessed
on an ongoing basis o determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial
reparting periods for whach they were desigrated.

Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedee accounting and are classified as cash flow hadges are
accounted for as described below.

The effective portion of the gain or less on the hedging mstrument 15 recognised directly i other
comprehensive income in the caoh fow hedging reserve, while any inelfective pomtion is recognised
immedintely in the income sintement.
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L5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feontimned

{9} Derivative fnandal instraments and hedge accoanting fomrimned)
Imitial recognition amd sabsequent measurement {cowiinned)

Amoents recognised in other comprebensve income are tmnsfermed 1o the income statement when the
hedged tramsaction affects profit of los, such i when bedged Mnincial income of financial expense is
recognised or when o forccast sale occurs, Where the bedped item 15 the cost of o non-financanl asset or
non-financial lability, the amoums recognised in other comprehemsive income are transfemed o the iniial
carrving amount of the pon-firancial asset or pon-finoncdal lotbiny.

IF the forecast trasaction or firm commitment is no longer expecied to occur, the cumulative gain or boss
previously recopnised in equity is tmnsferred 1o the income statement, (1 the hedging instrument expires or
is sobl, terminated of exercised withowt replacernent or roflover, or iF its designation as a bedpe is revaked,
the amounts previously recogised i other comprebensive incoms remain in other comprehensive neome
unitsl the forecast transsction or finm commitment alfects profit o loss.

{10y Fair value measurenicnl

Faar vitlue i the price that woubd be receivied 1o sell an asset or pudd wo transfer o liability in an orderdy
irznsaction between market participants # the measurement date, regardless of whether thai price is
direcily observabbe or estimated using another valuation technique, In estimating the fir value of an asset
or & leability, the Group takes into scoount the claracieristics of the asset o lability if market participants
witihl take those chamcteristics into aceount when pricing the asset or lability a1 the measurement date.
Foir vabue for measurcrnent andior disclosune purposes in these consolidated fimancial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for keasing trnsactions that are within the scope of 1AS 17 Leases, and
mezsuremients that have some simitanities o fair value but ane not fair valoe, such as value in wse in [AS 36
Impairment of Assets.

(11) Investmem propertics

Invemment propenics are imerests in land and buildings {including the leaschold Enerest under an
operating bease for & property which would otherwise meet the definition of an invesiment property
held to eam rental income and'or for capital appreciation, rather than for wse in the production of supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ondinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, imcloding ransaction costs. Subsequent fo initial reccgnition,
investment propertics e stated at fair valee, which reflects market coneitions @ the e of the reporting
period.

Giains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of investment property shall be determined as the
difference between the not disposal procesds and the carrying amount of the ssset and shall be recognised

in profit or loss (unless IAS |7 reguires othcrwise on a sale and beaschack] in the period of the retinement
or disposal.
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L5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feontimned

{11y lovestment propertics fomnifmncd

For a transfer from investment propenies 1o owner-occupsed propenties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting i is fair valee o the date of change in use. 1T a propeny occupied by the Group
as an owner-ocupied property becomes an imvestment propenty, the Giroup accoimis for such propeny
in mozordance with the policy stated under “Propenty and equipment and depreciation™ p 1o the date
of change in usc, and any diffenonce of that date between the cormying amourt and the fuir value of the
propenty is accounted for is an assel revaluation reserve.

{12)  Property and equipment and depreciation

Propery and equipment, other than construction in progress, are siated at cost less: acoumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of properny and equipment comprises s
purchase price and any direcily attnibutable costs of bringing the asset (o its working condition and loecation
for its intended wse.

Expenditure incurred afber tlems of propeny and équipment have been pul imo opertion, such as repairs
and maintenance, 18 normally charged to the income staterment in the period in which it = incwrmed. In
sinzstions where the recognition critena are satisficd, the cxpenditure for & major mapection is Gapitalised
in ihe carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant pans of property and equipment
are required o be replaced a1 intervals, the Group recognises such pans as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accondingly.

Depreciation i calculmed on the stright-line bases 1o wiite off the cost of each item of propeny and
equipment, other than comstruction (n progress, 1o its residual value over is estimaied welul Nz, The
principal armesl rates weed for this pumose are as follows:

Lansd anid buildings L50% 1o 19.40%
Office cquipment, fumiture and fxiurcs T1.50%% to 32.33%
Muotor veldcles 6.00% 1p 24 25%

Where parts of an item of propemy and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable hasis pmong the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, 3 least ot cach Anoncaal
year end

An item of property and equipment including any significant pan mitially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when o future sconomic benefits ane expected from iis use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
differcnce between the net sales proceeds and the camying amount of the relevant asset.
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L5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feontimned

{13} Construction in progress

Construction in progress mainly represents bunbdings under constmuction, which is staied at cosi less any
impairment losses. and is not deprecived. Cost comprises 1he direct cosis of construction and capdialised
bormowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period of comstruction, Construchion in progress is
rechisified 1o the nppropriile catégory of property and equipment when complesed ind ready for wse,

{14) Intangible assers (lser than goodwill)

Irstamgible: assets acquired separately are measured on nital recopnition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets dequined i bisitness combination is the Gur value at the date of acquisiion. The weful Hyves
of intngihle assets are assessed 1o be either finite or indefinite. Intangible ssets with finlie lives are
subsequently amortised over the weful economic life and assessed for impasment whenever there i an
indcation that the meangible gsset may be impaired. The amontisstion peniod and the amonisstion method
fiof s diatampilile asset with a Anite uselul life are reviewed at least at gich Nnancial vear ead,

The el lives of software are from 3 eo 10 vears.

{150 Impairment of non-financisl asscls

Whene an indication of impairment exisis, or when annual fmpairment testing for an asset is required (other
than financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount 5 cstimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount {5 the higher of the msset’s or cashegenerating unit™s valug in use and s faie value less costs of
disposal, and is deseanyined for an individual asset, unless the asser does nofd generate cash inflows that ane
largely independent of those from ether assets of groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-gencrating wndt 1o which the asset belongs,

An impairmend loss s recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds s recoverible amoant.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present valie using a pre-
1% discount rate that redlects curment market assessments of the time value of money and the nske specific
Ior the asset. An impairment loss is charged o the ingome statement in the penod in which it anses or
treated as a revilustion decrease, as appropriate,

An assessment is made at the end of each repoming period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment |osses may no longer exist or may have decrexsed. 17 such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an assct other than
goodwill s reversed only il ihere has been o change in the estimates used 1o determine the recovernble
amount of that asset, bot ot to an amount higher than the camying amount that would have boen
determined (net of any depreciation/amonisution) had no impaiment loss been recognised for the asser
in price years, A reversal of such an impaimmient boss is cvedited to the income statement in the period in
which it arises or treated as 3 revaluntion increase, as appropriate,
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L5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feontimned

{16) lnsurance receivabbes

Insurance receivables are recognised when due and measured on mitlal recopnition a2 the fair value of the
comsideration received or receivable. Subseguent 10 initial recognition, insurance recelvables are measured
al amortisedd cost, using the effective interest mle method. The camying value of maurmnce neceivables s
reviewed for impaimient whencver evenls of circimstances indicate that the carrying amours may not be
receivable, with the impaimment boss recorded in the income statement.

Imsurance receivables are derecopnized when the derecognition criterin for financial sssets have been met.

(170 Produet clasification and unbondling

Insurance contracts are those contrcts under which the Group has accepuad significam insurance risk from
the policyholders by agreeing 1o compensabe the policyholders if a specified uncertain fisture event (the
insured event) adversely affects the policybolders. Details of significant insurance risk 1esting are set oul
below, Insurance contracts may also transfer financial risk 1o the Growp.

Ivestment contracts are those contects that transfer saipnificant financial nsk but no:or indgnificant
insurance risk. Financml risk i the risk of a possible future change in onc or more specificd interest rates,
a financial instrament price, o commadity price, a forgign exchange raie, an index of price or rabes, a credit
rating or & credit index or other variables, provided in the case of a non-financial variable, the variable is
not specific in a party 1o the contract,

Some contracts iszoed by the Group may comtain both an insurance componend and a deposil componenl.
IT these two components are distinet and can be measured reliably, the underlying amounts are unbundled,
Any premyimms relating to the insurnnce risk eomponent are sccounted for on the same basis a5 insurmance
comracts and the remaining element is accounted for a5 an investment contrict.

The Growg test the significance of insurnnee sk ransfer a1 initinl recognition of all relevant contracts.
Once a coniract has been classifbed a5 an imsumnce contract, i ramains an insunmce contmct up o
derecognition, even if the insurance risk subsequently redusces significantly. Investment coniracts
ean, however, be reclassified as. insurance comracts after indtinl recognition if’ insurance. risk becomes
significant,

(18} Insurance comtract Habilities

The inswance coniract liabilities of the Group inclede Tong-term life and bealth insurance comimact
linhilities. imeamed premium reserves and claim neserves,

Wihen measuring insurance contract lisbilities, the Group clissifies insurance contracts whose insumnee
risks are of a similor nonure as o measarement unit, Noo-life and short-term health insorance policies

are grouped o cenoin measurement uniis by lines of business. For long-term life and bealth imsgmnce
mlicies, the mexsurement it is cach individa] insumnce contmet.

Arvual Foporl 2015 127

236/358



EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
oOoOooodn

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decembar 2015
fAmounds in miions of Renminbl, wnkess othanvse siafed)

L5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feontimned

{18y losurance contract Habilities foornfnued)

Unearmed presium reserves

Linearned premiom reserves ane recognised at inception of non-life and short-term health insarance
comracts until the insumnce coverige expires. The uneamed prémium reserves represenl preimiims
received for nisks that have not yet expired, At mcepiion of the contract, it represents premiums received
or reccivable minus relevant acquisition costs, Acquisithon costs in relation to the sale of new insurmnce
comracts such as handling charges and commissions, underwriting persomal expenses, business s and
surcharges, imsurnee profechion experses and other imcrementil costs are recorded 45 expenses i prodit
or loss againg on cqual and oppasite amount of premium being recognised as revenuve. Subsequent io
the initial recognition, uncamed premium reserves ang released on a 10365 or 124 basis according to the
insrance covernge penol. When any deficiency anises from performing the lability adequicy tests as
deseribed below, uneamed premium reserves kv to be adjimted to reflect the deficiency.

Tmsuranece contract Nabifides other than sncarned preminm reserves

Oiher than wneanscd premimm resenve, insumnce contract lizbilities are measured based on ressonable
estimaies of the paymems the Group will make to flfil the relevint obligations under the insumnce
comracts, These estimates represent the difference between expected future cash outflows and inflows
undler such contracts, i.e,, the expected future net cash outflows,

Expecied fusure net cash outflows over the entire coverage and sertlement period gre taken indo. sooouni
in mexsuring insurance comret linhilities. For insurance policies with 2 pasranteed renewal opion, the
coverage period is extended 10 the date when the oplion to renew ceases to be guararieed because the
Giroup acguires the right to re-price the risk under the contract.

+  Expecied fuwwre cash outflows represemt reasonable cash outflows which ane necessary for the
Giroup to fulfil the obligations under the insurance contracts (inchiding henefits. snribueable o the
palicybolders), and mainky include:

{a] Guoranteed benefits under the insurance contraces, incleding claims, momality benefiis,
disability benefits, morbidity benefics, survival benefits and maturity benefits;

(b} Non-gusraniced benefits under the msurance contracts arsing from constructive obligations,
including policyholder dividends;

(¢l Reasonabbe expenses necessary for policy acquisitions, admindstration and claims. handling,
including policy maintenance expenses and claim handling expenses,

+  Expected future cash inflows represent cash inflows orising from assuming labilities under the
imsurence: contragts, including promium inceme and otler charges.

Both risk margin and residusl margin are sepamtely recognised for long-temm ife and healih insumnce
coniracts. Risk margins are recognised for claim reserves.
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L5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feontimned

{18y losurance contract Habilities foornfnued)

Jmsiravce connsract Nabilities other than wnearned preminn reserves fcontinged)

E Risk margin represents provision for the incertainty sssoceried with the fulure net cash flows, Risk
inargin i determined wsing the cost of capital approach or the confidence imerval approach and
hased on the most recent expersence of the Group s well as by reference 1o the industry benchmark.
Driversification effect is not considered in arriving at sk margins.

+  Avinception of an insuraboe comrmet, any “dav-one” gain 15 not recognised in the income statement,
bui included in the insurance comract labilities as a residual masgin, At inception of an insumnce
contract, any “day-one” loss is recognised in the meome statement, Residunl marging are not re-
measurcd ot the end of each reponing date, They are amortised on the basis of the effective sums
isimed of pamber of pollcles over the enlire covempe pesiod.

Reasonable estimases In expected fuiure net cash fows are determined baszed on information cusrently
available xs ot the end of e reporting period,

When measuring insurance contract liahilitics, time value of money is considered. The related fature
cash flows are discounted when the impact of time valoe of money & matenal, For ghor contraces with

durations less than one vear, the cash flows ane nod discounted, The discount nves used in the measurement
of ime valee of money arc determined with reference to information cumently available ot the el of the

year.
Linbility edequacy tests

Ai the end of each reporting period, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of the
ungamed premium reserve, I after applving a risk margin, the expected present value of cxsh outflows
exceeds the expected present valise of cash inflows, the entire deficiency IS recognised in profif or koss of
the period in which the deficiency arises. Uneamed prenium reserve may hove to be sdiusied if there iz
any deficiency arising from the performance of these tests.

Derecognition of insnrance cortract Rabilines

Insurance coniract liabdlities are derecognised when they are discharged or cancelbad, or expire.

(190 Provisions

Except comingent considerations deriving from o contingent liabilitics assumed in business combxinations,
contingent liahilitics are recognised as provisions if the following conditions ane mer:

*  Anentity has a present ohlization as o result of 3 past event;

. It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying coonomic benefits will be required to seithe the
obligation; and
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L5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feontimned

{190 Provisions feonrimaed)
+ A rcliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

The amoum recognised as 2 provision shall be the bes estimate of the expenditure required o senle the
presemt obligation bt the end of the reporting period with the consideration of risks. uncenainties and the
time value of mongy. Provasions shall be reviewed af the end of the reporting penod ond sdjusted to reflect
the current best estimage.

{20) Emploves benefits
Retirement benefits cost and teeminption bemefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees
have remdered service eatitling them to the contribistion.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefiis is determined using the
projecied unit credint method, with sctusrial valuations being carried out ot the end of each annual reporting
periosl. Remcasurement arising from actuarinl gains and losses is reflecied immcdiately in the statement of
financtal posithon with o charge of credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period n which
they ocour, and will not be reclassified v profit or oss.

The remeasureiments artang lrom actuarial gaine amnd bosses recopnizsed in other comprebeasive income
are pocurulated in the Group's neserve headod ‘actuarial {lossesligains on peasion benefit ebligation” and
s transferrec b retained profits when the defined beneli plans terminaes. Past service cost is recogized
in prafit o koss in the period of a plan amendment. [nterest cxpense is calculated by applying the disoount

rate at the beginning of the period o the defined benefi liability, Defined benefit costs ane categorised as
forllows:

s Service costs (including past service costs, gaing and losses on curtilment and setlements ),

L] Interest expenses; and

*  Remeasurement,

The Group presents the first two componenis of its defined benefi costs o profit or koss i “Other
Operating and Administirative Expenses”™ and “Finance Costs”, Cunailment gains and losses are accounted
for as past service oosts,

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in-the consolidoted statement of financinl position represents
the sotm) deficits i the Group's defined benedit plan

A liabitiny for o serminusion berefit is recognised at the carlier of when the Group can no loager withdrw
the offer of the termination benefit amd whei the éntity recoznises nny related resirocturing costs.
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L5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feontimned

{200 Emplayee benefits (oontinued)

Shori=term and oifver fong-term employee benegfies

A liability & recopnised for benefits accruing 1o employvees in respect of wages and salaries, annua leave
and sick leave imothe period the relsted service is rendered at the undiccounted amount of the benefits
expocted to be pard m exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term emploves benefits ane measuned 91 the umdscounted amount
of the benelits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Linbalities recognised in respect of sher loag-term: emplovee bemefits ane measured ot the presens value
of the estimiied fdure cush outllows expecied 10 be made by the Group in respect of services provided by
crnpliyees i 1o the reporting e,

(21 Policyhelder dividends

Pobeybolder dividerds repeesent dividencls payable by the Group 1o peficyhalders in accordance with the
terms of maurines comtracts, The dividends are calculated and provided based on the dividond distrilution
determination and the results of aciuarial valuation,

When palicyholders” dividends are declansd, they are accounted for as financial labilitses and initially
iiegnred at Giir vilise and subsequently meisured ot amortised cosls.

(22} Leasing

Leases are classified as fimance beases whenever e terms of the lease transfer sobstamtially all e risks
and rewards of vwnership 1o the lessse, All other keases are classified is operating leases,

The Grong as lesvor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on g swraight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Initial direct costs mcwmed in negotiating and arranging an operuting kease are added o
the carrying amount of the leased asset nnd recognised as an expense on o straight-line basis over the lease
T2

The Gorang s lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a srighi-line bases over the lease term,
Contingent rentals anising under operating leases are recognised a5 an expense in the period in which they
are incurmed.

In the event that |zase incentives ane received to enter inio operating |eases, such incentives ane necognised

as a lability. The aggregate bemefit of incentives 15 recognised as o reduction of rental cxpense on a
stemght-line hasis.
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L5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feontimned

{22) Leasing frontinned

Leavelold fand for own nw

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Croup assesses the clissification of each
clement a8 a finance of G0 operiting hease separtely based ob the awesament a5 1o whether substantially
all the risks und rewands incidental 1o ownership of coch clement have beon transferred 1o the Group unless
it Is cliear that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease, Specifically, the minimiom leise pavments (incloding any lump-sum upfront payments) ane allocared
between the and and the bankling elements in proportion te the relative fair values of the leasehold
intereats in the land element and bulding clement of the lease at the inception of the kease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably, interest i leasshobd land that is
aceouiied fof a8 an operming lease ks presemed ax prepald lind premiums in e comsolidated starement
of fimancial pesstion and amortised over the bease term on o stright-hine bass. When the lease payments
canned be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire lease ks genemlly classified
a3 a finance lease pnd secounted for 25 propenty asd equpment.

{231 Revenoe recognition

Revenue is recognised when it 1s probabbe that the economic benefits will Mlow 1o the Group and when the
revenus can be measuned reliably on the following hases:

(sraxy premiums

Fremium income and reinsurance premium ncoms arg recopnised when the msurance comracts are sseed,
related insurnce risk 15 undenaken by the Croup, it is probabie that the refated economic benefits will
flovw to the Growp and the related income can be reliably measured.

Premiuns {oom life inserance contracts with instalment or single payments are recognised as revenie
when due. Premiums from dinect mon-life insirnee commets are recognised &5 revene acconding 1o the
total premiwms stated i the contrmets,

Fee income

Insurgnce and imvesimend coniract policyhobders are charged for policy adminksiration senvices, mvesiment
management services, surrenders and other contract fees, These fees are recopnised as revenue over the
period in which the related services are performed.

Tmvestment income

Interest income 15 recopnised in the income: stabement as it acerwes and 1s cabeulated by using the efective
interest ratc method, Fees and commissions that are an integral pan of the effective yield of the financial
asset Or lability are recognised as an adjustment to the effective inenest rate of the instrumeni.

Imestment income also inchides dividends when the nght o receive payment 18 established For listed
securities, this is the date the security is listed ns ex-dividend,

132 The Pecple's Insursnce Company [Growp) of Ghina Limtted
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L5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feontimned

{24) Reinsurunce

The Group cedes insurance risk in the normal cousse of business for part of its bisinesses. Reinsurance
assets represent balances due from reinsurance companics, Amoumns recoverable from reinsurers ane
estimted in a manner consistent with the insurance contract liahilities or senled claims pssociaied with the
refiesared policies and are in sccondance with the related refsurance contracls.

Reinsminoe mssets are reviewsd for impoirment at each reponting date or more frequenly when an
Indbcation of imperment arises during the reponing vear. Impairment ocours when there 18 obdective
evidenie as 4 result of an event that ocourned after inital recognition of the reinsurance asset that the
Geroup may not receive oll ouistanding amounts due under the temms of the contract and ithe effect has'a
reliably measurable impact on the amounits that will receive from the reinsurer, The impaimment loss is
recorded in the moome statement,

Ceded reinsurance armngements do not relieve the Group from its obligations to policyholders,

The Group also asumes rensurance risk in the normal course of business for insurance contracts wherne
applicible. Premiums and cliims on assumed rdmsurmes ane recognbed as revense and expenses in the
same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into accouni
the product classification of the reinsured busimess. Relnsurance Habilities represent balances due 1o
reimsymnce compunies, Amounts payable 10 reinsurers ane estimated oo manner consistent with the
related reinsurance comiacts, Receivables aml payables ansing from reinsiamnce Comiels are mexsured at
amaortised costs and not offset for presentation pumposes,

Commissions receivable on outward reinsurance contracts are recorded as income in the income siatement,
The reinsurers” share of uneamed premium reserves is reduced by commissions receivable on outward
resurnce contracts at meoption and subsequently the reduced ballance is relessed over the term of the
comract in the same manner as the rekaed uneamed preminm reserves. Reinsurers” share of loss and boss
adjusiment expense reserves also inclsdes their shane of rsk margin to the gros halance of loss and ks
adjustment expense feserves.

Premiums and claims are presemed on & gross basis for both ceded and assumed reinsurance.

Reinsurance assets or Habilities ane denscognised when the contrachudl nights are extinguished or expire or
when thie comernet is transferned to another pany.

Reinsurance conracts that do not transfer significant insurance risk are accounted for as financial
instruments, These are depasit assets or financial liabilitics that are recognised based om the consideration

paid or received less any explicit idemified preminms or fecs 1o be retamed by the cedant. Inwestment
income or expense on these contracts is accounted for using the effective imerest method when accrued.
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L5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feontimned

{251 Borrawing msts

Bormowing costs dircctly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
Le.. assets thae necessanly take a substantial period of tme 1 pet ready for thedr imended w=e or sabe, are
ciapitalizsd s pan of the cost of those pssets. The capitalisation of such bormowing costs ceases when the
assets are substaptially ready for their intended use of sale, Investment incomse camsd on the temporary
investment of specific bormowings pending their expenditure. on - qualifying asscts 15 dedoceed from the
bormowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are éxpensed i the pericd In which they are
Incurmed. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other direct cosis that an entity incurs in connection with
the bomowing of funds.

(26) Government grants

Government grants are recogmisad in profit or loss where there is reaspnable pssurance that the grnt
will be received amd all aticling conditions will be complied with, When the grait relales 1o i expeiise
item, it is recognised as income on 4 systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is imended
{0 compensiate, are expensad. Where the prant relales to an assel, the government grant is credsied 1o
3 deferred income sccount and is released to the income stiement over the expected useful ik of the
redevant aaset by cqual annual instalments or deductod from the camrying amount of the assot and released
io ihe income siaiement by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
(27} Related parties

A party is considered o be related 1o the Group if:
{a} the pamy is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that person:

(i has conrpl o joint conerol ever te Groug,

(i} has significant influence over the Group; or

fiii) s & member of the key mansgement personnel of the Group or of a paren of the Group: or
(b)  the pamy is an entity where any of the following conditions spplies:

(i) the catity and the Group are members of the same groug;

(il) one entity is an associnte or @ jont venture of the other entity (or of 2 parent, subsidiary or
fellew subsidiary of the other encity);

(i) the entity ond the Group are joint venmres of the same thind party;

{iv} one entity is a joiml venture oF o third entity and the other entity is an assocante of the third
enfity;
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L5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feontimned

(270 Related parties foontmecdl
(b} 1he pary is an entity where any of the following conditions applies: {comtimued)

(vl the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employess of either the Growp or
i entity related 1o the Groy,

{vi) the entity is controlled or foantly controlled by a person sdentified infa); and

(vil) o person idemtified in (a1} has significant influence over the entity or 16 a member of the key
management persennel of ihe entity (o of o parent of the entity ).

(28) lncome tax

Iiscome tx comspeises current and defermed tax. Income tax relating to items recopnised mitside peofit or
Ipss &% recognised outside profie or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax agiets and labilities for the current and prior periods ore measened ot the amount expected
tex be recoviered from or paid to the taxation authontics, basad on tis mecs (and tax lws) that have bacn
caacied or substantively enacied by the year enid, taking imo consideration the (nlerpretations and practhces
prevailing in the countries in which the Company and its subsidiaries operates.

Déferred tax labilities are recognised for all taxible wemparary differences, excepl:

= when the deferred tas liabilily arises From the Iniiial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liabiliay in
a trunssction that 15 not a busingss combination and, at the tme of the mnsaction. affeces peither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and

*  in respect of raxable wmporary differences associated with invesimcnis in subsidiancs, associaics
anel joknt ventures when the ming ofF the reversal of the temmpovary differences can be contnolkad and
it s prohabile that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeahle fswre.

Dieferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences, the carry-forwand of unused tax
credits and any unused tax lesses 10 the extent that it is probable that nxable profit will be available agains:
which the deductible wmporry differences, the camy-forward of unused @x credits and unused s losses
can be wiilised, excepi-

= when the deferred tax asset relating so the deductible tempormry differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset of lishility in & transaction that is not a business combination and. ot the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor tixable profit or loss: and

i respect of deductible temporary differences associated with mvestments in subsidinnies, associntes
and joint ventures, deferred tox assets are ondy recognised 1o the extent that it is prebable that the

iemporary differences will reverse in the foresceable future amd taxsble profit will be available
aainst which the temporry differences can be urilised.
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L5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES feontimned

{28)  Nocome tax foomimued)

The carrying amount of deferred fx assets is reviewed i the end of the reporting period and reduced 1o the
extent thae it is mo longer probable that sufficient axable profit will be available ro allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be wtilised, Unrecognissd defermed tax assets are reassessed o1 the énd of the reporting
perbodd and are recopnised to the extent that it lee become prohabile that sulficient taxable profit will be
avatlable 1o albow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recoverad.

Deferred ey assets and liabilities are measured o1 the tax rates that sre expected 1o apply 10 the period
when the asset s realised or the labily is setled, based on tax rtes (and fax bws) that kave been enacted
or substantively enacied by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assels and deferred tax labilities are offset i @ legally enforceable right exists o st off
CliFfenl 1K as&e1s against current tix labilites and the deferred taxes relate 1o the same tixable emtity and
the same tacation auhority,

The measurement of defeered tax labiliics snd assets reflect the lax consequences that would follow frem
the nemner in which the Group espects, at the end al' the reparting penod, 10 recover or settle the Gurying
amaunits of its assets and lishilities, mber than described below,

For the purposes of measuring defemed tax lobilings or deferred tan pssets for mvestment propernies
that are measured using the Gir vilue model, the camying amounts of such propertics are presumed o
be recovered entirely throogh sale, undess the presumption is rebutted by facts amd circumstances. The
presurmption is rebutied when the investment propertizs ane depreciahle and sre held within the context of
1 business model whose objective is to substantiolly consume over ime the economic benefits embodied in
thie investment propertics, rather than through sale.

X SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The prepamation of the Group™s lnancl stalements requings mamagement o make judiements, estinates and
dssuemptions that affect the reponed amounts of revenues, expenses. assets and labilities and their sccompanying
disclosures and the disclosure of confingent Rabilitics. Uncenainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that eould require & material adjustment to the earrying smounts of the pssets or lisbiliies:
affected in the future,

Judgemenis

In the process of applying the Group's sccomnting policies, management has made the followms judgements,
apan from those invelving cstimations and assumptions, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in ihe financial sintements:

136 Tha People's Insurance Corpany [Group) of China Limited
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I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (camtinued
Judgements {congmued)

) Clossifieaton grd segsuremens of finercial assen

Minagement ineeds bo make fudgements on the classifications of (el assets as different elass fications
will affect the secountmg treatment for the fencial assets, and the fnancial postion and operating results .
of the Group. The judgements on these classificabons depend on the natre and purposes of acquiring
these financial assets ot their infiol recognitions. Subsequent reclassifications may be mude if the mieation
of holding a partioulir financial esset changed ond that reclissification is permitsed by IFRS.

The mansgement of the Group judpes whether fair value con be messured reliably for available-for-sale
equity financial axsets without prices i pn active market, and measures them at cost iF they cannnd he
negired seliably.

i Unbundling, clesdffearton and significant oisk sesting of contraces
The Group his made simificant pidgement on whether a contract bears insurmance risk and other risks,
and whether the risks are distinct and can be measured sepamicly. The resulis of the judgemnent ailect the
unbundling of the contrmct.
The Growp made judgement on whether 3 contract transfers insurance risk, and whether the wansfer
of insurance risk has commercinl substance and is significant. The resalis of the judgement affect the
classification of the contract.
When performing significant insurance risk testing, contracts exhibiting homsgenos risks for a panicular
product are grouped iogether. Subsequenily, adequate represeniative samples are drawn firom individhaal
groups, taking into account their nsk distributions and characteristics. All contracts i a paricular group
will be recognised as insurznce contracts if more than 508 of the samples have mansferred significant
insuranee risk.

The wmbundling and classification of conimets affect revenue recognition, measurement of liabiliies and
presemtution of the consolidated financial statements of the Group,

i Stgwificant influence when feas than 20 per cent af votfing power iy freld
The Group determines whether it can exercise influence over an nvestee when it haobds, directly or
indirectly through subsidiaries, less than 20 per cont of the voting power of the investee, bul one or more of
the following Endicators are present:
*  represeniation on the board of directors or equivalemt governing body of the investee;

+  panticipation in policy-making processes, including participation in decisions about dividends or
other disanibutions;

] material transactions hetween the investor and the investes:

+  inlerchanpe of managerial personncl; or
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I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (camtinued
Judgements {congmued)

8 Sigmificaws influence wien Less thon 20 pev cent of voifng power i helif feonifmned)
s peoviaion of essential technical information.

An invessee as sccoumted for as an associate If it s comcluded tha the Group exercises sgnificant
mfluence over that imvestes; otherwise, it is sccounted for a5 o financial asset in accondance with TAS 19,

The reasons for existence of significant influence over some ivestces, even though the voting rights held
by the Group is less than 2076, are disclosed in note 26 10 these consplidaed financial staements.

) Consaliditmns of strucinred entitles

The Group has interest in o moge of structured entities in s dally operations For invesiment purposes,
These entities vary in legal forms anc nvestors” rights on removals of e managers, changing underlying
assets and liquadations. Certain subsidiaries of the Company are also engaged m launching and managing
these structured entities, The Group has to assess wheiber it has control over these entities. The decision
mainly depends on whether the Groop is the investment manager, whether or not the Group has powers
over changimng any investment decisions and imvestment managers, and how the returns can be affected by
these powers.

(81 Duferred raxarion on investment properiies

For the purposes of messaring defiemed tax liabilities arsng fom investment propenics thal ans mesuncd
using the fuir value moded, the directors have reviewed ihe Group's invesstment property portfolics in
the PRC amd concluded thar the Group's investiment properties. are beld under o busingss model whose
objective is 10 consume substantsally all of the economic benefits embodied in the mvestment propenies
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s defemed taxation on investment
propertics, the Group has determined dust the presumption: that the carmying amounts off investment
propernics measured using the fair valoe mosel mre recovered entinely through sale is reburied.

Estimution uncertainty

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation unceriainty af the year end, thai
have a significant risk of causing & material adjustment o the carrying amounts of assets and fabilities within
the next fmancial year, are described below.

(0 Impairment of foans and recefvables
Wihen there is objective evidence that there is impairment in loans anel receivables, the Group assesses
the degree of risk and collccrability of cach iens, The Group nesds (o recognise an anpaimment loss in the
income. statement if the present value of cxpected futuwre cash Mows is dess than the carmying amourt of

lpans and receivables. The Groap mainly considers the fimancial situation and credil mtimg of the debiors
and changes in the capital market.
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I SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (camtinued
Estimation unceriainty foowfmmed)

(1 Impuivmeas of foany and receivables feomtinued)

Other than fmparment for individual recehables, the Group alio collectively asscsses impaimment for
receivibles, Such collective msessment is cumied oul for o group of receivables with simalar credit risk
charmcieristics. The degree of impalmment depends on the tming and amoumn of fubire cash Nows.

Loans and receivablies inchide cash equivalents, insurance receivibles, term deposils, restricted statory
deposits, investmients classified as loans ond receivables and miscellancous receivables. The carrying
values of these zssets are disclosed in the consolidated stmement of firancial position smd respective notes.

2 Valuation af luvurance coniract Hobillites

At the end of the reponing period. when measuring the insurance contract neserve, the Growp needs 1o
make reasonable estimuates in payments: which the Group is required to make in fulfiiling the obligations
uticler the insurance contracts, based oo informatien currently svailable ot the end of the reponting period.

The main sssumptions made in measuring thess lisbalities are as follows:

L) For insurance contracts under which futune insarance benefits are not affeceed by investmem incoms
of the underlying asset portfolio, the discount recs ane determined based on the 750-day moving
average of the yiekl curve of China’s treasury. bonds published by Clina Govemment Securities
Depository Trost & Clearing Co., Lid., with consideration of the tax ¢ffect and Tquidity premiums.
The Grooup sot the premiurs 1o be 30-11 1 basis poimts a5 o1 31 December 2005 (31 December 20142
50-112 basis points), Accordingly, the discount rates including premiums, os ai 31 December 20115,
were 3 37%=5,06%: (31 December 2014: 3.67%-0,38%),

For insurance contracts which futare insornce berefits will be affected by investment income of the
underiying ssset ponfolio, the dscoun rfes are determined based on expected future imvestment
returms of the investment poriolio backing the liabilities. The discount rstes used by the Group as at
31 December 2003 were 3.00%%-5.30% (31 December 201 4: 3,007%-5.50%).

The discouni mic and invesimeni returm assumptions are affected by the future cconomic
evironment, capital market perfomuance, investment channels of insurece funds, investment
strategey, efc., and therefore subject to uncenainty,

The discount rates are the assumplions which have the most significant impacts on the measwrement

on the long-term life insurance contract linhilitics, The changes of these assumplions during the year
increased long-term life insumnce contract labilities by RMBGM million.
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L SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES frontinued}
Estimation unceriainty foomtinmed)
(3 Valuasion af imswrance coniracs fabilities feonfmaed)

s+ Morality. morbidity and disabality rates are Based on the Group's own éxperience. mirket
experience and development trends. Mortality rtes are determined basexl on the Group's historcal
datn, estimations of current and future expectations and the unlestinding of China’s insumnee
marker, and presemted using the stondard Chapese mortality tables. Morbidity mies ane determined
heised on factors such as the pncing assumptions of the Group’s produces and higtoncal daga. The
assumptions of mortality and morbidity rmbes are affected by faciors such as changes in lifestyles of
nutional citizens, social development, and improvement of medical trestment, and hence subject 1o
uncenmnty,

*  Lopse rates depend on policy woar, product type and sales chamel, The assumptions of lapse mies
are affected by factors such as future economic environment and market competition, and hence
subject to unceriuinty,

X Expenses depend on costs analysis ond future development irends. For future expenses sensitive
1o inflation, the Group also considers the effect of inflation, The expense nssumptions include
assumptions of scquisition coss and maintenance costs, The Group only considers cxpenses directly
relmed 1o policy scquisition axd maintenance,

+  Fumure policyholder dividends depends on iactors such as especied Investment yields, dividend
policy and policyholders” measonable expectations. The assumption of pamicipating insuranee
accounts is aflected by the above factors, and heoce bears uncertainty, Future policybolder dividensds
for individual panicipating insurance business of the Group are measured pssuming thai the Group
will award to policyholders T of the distibutable surphus calculwed according 1o these contracts.

*  The Group desermings the risk margin assumptions (85 a percentage of discourted net cash flows) for
b liability sdequacy test over uncamed premiem reserves as follows:

Type 015 014
Agreculiurn] insurmnce 138% 338%
Motor vehicke insurance A% 308
Other non-life insumance 6.0% 60%
Shart-term healith insumance A% 3.0%

140 The Pecple's Insursnce Company [Growp) of Ghina Limtted
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OPFERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION feomtinmued)

Sepment asseis and liabilities as at 31 December 2015 and 2014, and other segment information for the year
ended 31 December 2005 and 2014

hendde Uk Habh Astat Head-
imorange  imoreece e et panen Otk (imnation Total

H Degember 2015
Sepmesi wacts 01,8 15756 JLER L 1,74 Ll | I R
Sepmen [iahiliey N1 1A ALl LT L Lt M I
(e sepment mfommstion:
Copral expendmess 0 L Tl m 4 I - R |
Deprecistion med miovitaition 13 191 R B 5§ 12 | LAk
By moome 2438 1541% 123 L. m [ - g
Impuimenl ks 4] 4] | 1] 12% - (L] ol
H Detembier 1014
Semmenl kwts b T 33405 6 MR b\ S - 4/ 1|
Sepment iahilmes iR s 0 L 765 157 (1286)  Efabdd
(e seqmuen imformion:
Capial expeniimes R 117 il 14 4 1 - Al
Depreviation 10 smonHanoe 14 i ] n (] 1% L] 130
Tiera moome 18354 14187 137 T4 ' ¥ - s
mpaimctl bossti 1 % 10 4] I - - L%

The headguarsers, 1ife and non-life seaments hold equity interests of 0.91%, 6.45% and 6.70% (31 Decernber
20014 1L91%, 4.95% and 4,98%%), respectively, in the Industrinl Bank Co,, Ltd {"Industrial Bank™), an associate
of the Group. These interests are accounted for &5 avatlable-for-sabe finoncial assets in the financial statements of
the Company and of other principal subsidianes. On consalidotion, these interssts in aggregate are accounted for
a5 an associate and the impacts of relevam adjustments 10 the consolidated financial seatements are allocaied 1o
the respective segments according & thair respective cquity interest holding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear anded 31 Decembaer 2015
JAmounts in millons of Renmnd, unlass ofhanyise siadad)

15, EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic carmings per share for the years 2005 and 2014 is based on the profit atmbutable 1o
eqquity holders of the parent and the mumber of ondinary shares in ssue during the year.

s 2014
Prodit aftributatile 1o :_\q!m:.r_lmm ul'mg parent ﬁwme__y:ur 19,542 13,108
Number of ordinary shares {in million shares) 42424 24
Basic camings per share (in RME) .46 0.31

No dilured carmings per share has been presented o the vears 2005 and 2004 a5 the Group hid no potential
ordinary shares in issue duing e periods.

16, DIVIDENDS
s 2014
Dividends recogmsed as detnibutions during the year:
2014 Final, paid -~ RMBO9467] cent per share
[2014: 2013 Final, paid - RMB0.83 cent per shire) 402 352

As ot 27 March 2016, final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015 of RMB2I6005 cont per
share (2014 RMBO.946T] cent per share in respect of the year ended 31 Decermber 2014) bas been proposed by
the Board of Directors and i3 subject to approval by the sharcholders af the forthcoming general meeting.

17,  CASH ANDCASH EQUIVALENTS

M Deceambicr 31 December

205 2004

Cash on hand 1 1

Money at call and short notice 30,967 13,175

Deposits with hanks with original muurity of less than three months 30155 493
Securities purchased under resabe agreements

with original maturity of less than thres months 15861 5,636

TOTAL 49,484 39,307

For secunties purchased under resale agroements, counterparties e required 1o pledge cortaim: bonds as
collmerals.

Arvual Foporl 2015 157
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decembar 2015
fAmounds in miions of Renminbl, wnkess othanvse siafed)

0, EQUITY SECURITIES, MUTUAL FUNDS AND TRUST SCHEMES formtiamedl

Equity schemes are structured entitics which are cremed for mvesting in one or more equity investments. The
underlying equity investments of these equity schemes ore usumlly determined ot inception of these schemes and
any changes to, or additional imvestments in, the underbying equity mvestments of any particular scheme requires
stippart from two-thinds of the beneficliry inereses in thal scheme. Some of thede schemes dre lianched and
manaped by the Group.

The Group did not gunrangee oF provide any fmancial support for these Equity Schemes, und considers that the
carrying amount of these Bquity Schemes represents the Group's maxinnim risk cxposurne.

Az m 31 December 2005, the Group 8 the sole funding provider of a wrust investiment of carmang villee of
RMEBI036] million (3] December 2004: RMB20,300 millioa), The Group concludes it does not control ths
triast & investieil declsions ane made by o trust menager, which can oaly be removied in limied sitsations.

The trust {rvess in predominantly debt insruments and it offers the Group an expecied return of not more than
7.5% (3] December 2014: 7.5%5), Is actual returns and eventml repayment of indtial mvestments, bowever,
dipend on the performance underlying imvestments, which are predominantly debts in mature, The Growup
reccived returns b 7.5% (year ended 31 December 2014: 7.2%) from this trust for the year ended 31 December
2015, The life of this trust arrangensenl is 5 vears but can be extended for poother 2 years upon muteal conserl
The Growp's maximum boss s limited 1o its invesiments and has no coniractual obligations or intenbon 1o

provide any financial support to the trust,
M December 31 December
ms 014
Classification of cquity securities and mutual funds
Held for trading, =t fair value
— izsged by banks and other financial instintions 26,675 15,595
— issied by corporate entities 2039 I3
— issued by public secior entities b1 -
Available-for-sale, at fam valoe
— issued by banks and cther fimancial instiiutions 69,697 42,038
— issued by corporane emtities 15386 10,924
— issued by pubdic scctor entities 401 442
— issued by others 193 170
Avyuilable-for-sale, at cost less impatrment
— issued by bunks ard otber fmnancial mstiutions - 3,033
— issucd by corporatc entitics 503 0
Total equity securities and mutual fids 114,914 72387
Classificotion of trust schemes
Available-for-sale, at fair value
~ issued by hanks and other financial instintions 10361 20,3001
Tiotnl equaty secirities, mutual funds and st schemes 125275 02,637

160 The Pecple's Insursnce Company [Growp) of Ghina Limtted
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decembar 2015
fAmounds in miions of Renminbl, wnkess othanvse siafed)

13. TERM DEPOSITS

The onginal maturities of the tenm deposits are as follows:

Moge than 3 momths 1o | year
I b 2 years

2 to 3 years
More than 3 vears

TOTAL

3N December
s

1,375

8

1,385
145,329

148,097

EDINETOOOO
OO000O0000o00oOodnoE?26751)
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31 December
2014

4,185

1,967
158,056

164,408

These term deposits of the Group bear fixed or vanabbe interests end range from (0.75%-7.50% and 3.30%-4.95%
per anmum as af 31 December 2015, respectively (31 Decemnber 2004: mnge from (UT5%-6.60% and 0.75%:-

4.43% per annum),

M. INVESTMENTS CLASSIFIED AS LOMANS AND RECEIVARLES

3 December 31 December

s 2014

Loig-term debt investment schemes 09,655 &1,980
Asset management products H.130 12,930
Reinsirance armngement clissified o investment comrsct 2,000 2,0
Subordinated debis held (1] b220
TOTAL 110,485 B, 130

Long-term debt investment schemes (“Debt Schemes™) are structored emtities and offer either fixed or vanoble
interests to their investors, the Group has invested in a number of Debt Schemes over time, These Debit Schemes
were created o mise funds from imvestors for lending onto varioos: bosrowers. The Group's mvestments in
Dbt Schemes are entirely lending trinsactions in naure and the Group®s propoion of funds lent to thess Deb
Schemes ranges from 2% o 1H%G of the total funds raised. The interest rates of these Debt Schemes are 4.21%-
8.20% (31 December 20 14: 4.25%-8.30%) per annum a5 a1 31 December 2015,

All lnans originated by the Debt Schemes with the funds received from their imvestors are guaranteed by third
partics and these guaraniees are always joint, irevocable and onconditional. Guarators of Debt Schemes are
banks of high credit mting or state-owned emterprises. The Group does not cantrol any of these Debt Schemes.
The Group’s voting rights as benders 1o these Debt Schemes are protective of the Groap's interests i the Debe
Schemes und mainly comprise of gardy wrmination or extension of the Debt Schemes” term Gl when cenain
combitions exist, change of the Dbt Schemes” managers. Support from iwo-thinds of the beneficiary interests are

required to pass resolutions o make these changes.

Tha People's Insurance Corpany [Group) of China Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear anded 31 Decembaer 2015
JAmounts in millons of Renmnd, unlass ofhanyise siadad)

15, SUBSIDIARIES framtimed)
{m)  General information of subsidiaries (comtimredy

Only prneapal subsidianes wiach are directly held by the Company and have matenal impact on the
comsolidated financinl ssatements are listed above. Other subsidinries did not matenially affect the Group’s
niet Miancial position s operating results and were therefone nol separately dischosed.

Ax at 11 December 2015, the Company had direct and indirect inmerests in its subsidiaries, all of which
are private limited linhility companies or, il incomarnted outside Hong Kong, have substantially similar
charncienistics to a private company incorporated i Hong Kong, except for PICC PEC, which i listed on
the Main Doard of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, As at 31 December 2015, market value of shares of
PICC PEC is RMB132, 144 million (31 December 2014: RMEBIZ1686 million),

Boreowings and subondimated debis Bsued by these subsddiaries are set oul i nodes 35 and 36 to these
comolidued financial siements,

The Company and the following subsidiaries had issued subordinated debts at the end of the year:

31 December 2005 31 Drecember 2014
Held by third parties Held by third paries

Mominal Carrying Nominal Carrying

Aol gl Aot Aot

The Company 16,000 15973 165, 00K} 15,063
PICC P&C 16,000 16297 22,004 22450
PICC Life 6,000 6,105 & 50 8,657
FICC Healih Hon H3i3 B} B
AR N0 3z 47 M) 47,014

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has ather indirectly held subsidiaries that are ot material
1o the Group, The prancipal activities of these subsidianes are summarised as follows:

Number ol subsidiaries

Principal sctivity Place of incarporation 1 December 31 December

subsidiaries and aperation WS 2014

Insurance ineemediarics Beljing. Shanghai, 5 5

Shenzhen amd others

Insurance traiming services Frliman 1 1
Propeny development Heljing. Shanghai

aned manapement and others ] 5

Hotels, restaurunts and others Betjing, Lhejiang and others 3 2

17 13
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear anded 31 Decembaer 2015
fAmaunts i milons of Renmnty, unfiscs othansisa sisfad)

15, SUBSIDMARIES fommsipmaed)
by Details of nos-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-controlling inferests feongmned)

PICC PEC feomsinued)

s Zﬂl_-l
Tatal income 278,769 224,820
Total benefits, ciaims and expenses (249.039) {205, HR6)
Share of profits and lozses of assockates 47 W07
Income 1nx expense {6, 556) (4,326)
Profit for the vear 20,447 15,113
(hher comprehensive income for the year 5311 w43
Tiotal compachensive inconse for the year 17,180 24058
Drividends paid to non-controlling interess 1,243 933
Met cash nflow from apemting activities 17232 31467
Met cash outflow from investing activities (26,507) {25,140)
Mot cash (owiflow Vinflow from financing activatics LS 1,358
et cash (outflow inflow (1,329 T.88S5
MCC Life
31 December 31 December
s dinl4
Total pssets 157,560 354,044
Total lishilities 312467 323,756
Toeal sharcholders” equity 35093 10,258
Arvval Raport 2005 167
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15, SUBSIMIARIES fromtimed)
by Details of nos-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-controlling inferests feongmned)

PICC Life feontimued)

1S 2014
Tatal income iain 3. 146
Tineal benedits. claims and expenses (110,551) {98,098}
Skare of profit of an assoclae 2501 2,287
Ingomie 1 expense 96 (46}
Profit for the year 3,556 1LET1
(rher comprehensive income for the year 1,732 5837
Tiotal compachensive inconse for the year 5,248 1,08
Drividends paid to non-controlling imeress LT 33
Nt cash owtflow from operating activities (4363 (33,688)
Net cash mflow from imvesting activities 30,563 25,302
feet cash outflow from financing activities (18.427) (5,372)
et cash inflow {outflow) 7973 (13,758)

(g} Changes in owsership interests in subsidiaries

Duiring ihe vear, the Compaiiy and o noi-eontrolling sharcholder of PIOC AMC entered nto an equity
nterest iransfer agreement, wherchy the non-controlling sharcholdes sold ats %% equity imtenest m PICC
AMUC o the Company. After a deduation of 1he cash dividend payable 10 that non-conrolling shareholder,
the consideration for thas sequisition was approximasely RMBI30 million, pnd an amount of KMB3S
million, which represents the difference between the considerations paid and the Company's share of net
assets of this subsidiary, was credited to other reserves. Allier the completion of this transaction, PICC
AMC became a wholly owned subsidinry of the Company,

{dy  Sigaificant redrictioas

As cerun subsideanes of the Company are engeged in insurmnee business and regulated by the relevant
insurance regulatory authorities, the ability of the Company and is subsidiaries 1o pocess asszis held by
these subsidinnies 1o seitle lishilities of the Growp is restricted. The carrying pmounts of assets held by
these insurance entitics are disclosed in nide 4 10 these financial stalements as sepment assets of noa-life
insurance, life insurance and healih insurance sectors.

168 The Pecple's Insursnce Company [Growp) of Ghina Limtted
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decembar 2015
fAmounds in miions of Renminbl, wnkess othanvse siafed)

16, INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES fcontinued)

{b) Paniculars of the principal assoclates ane as follows: fomtiimed)

{1y ©Om 31 December 2012, the Company, PICC P&C and PICC Life in aggregate subscribed
approxiimitely 138 billion shares of Industrial Bank throdgh a private placeiment. After the
completion of the subscription, the Company, PICC PEC and PICC Lite each holds 0.91%, 498%
and 4.95% voling rghts in Indusirial Bank ard the Group as 4 whole became the second largest
sharchokder of Industrial Bank.

On 19 April 2013, Mr. Li Lisngwen, the President of PICC Life, was nominated by the Growp
1o be the director nomipee of Industrinl Bank and atended the Industrinl Bank board meeting
& the representative of shaseholder, Considering the sharcholders” rights n Industrial Bank and
comprchensive cooperation agreement signod on B May 2003 between the Group and the Industrial
Bank, the Group bolds the view that it has the ability (o have significat influence over Indostrial
Bank since & May 2003 and therefore accounts for its equity nterest in Industrial Bank as an
associale wsing cquity method i its consolidated financial stalements,

On 9 July 2005, PICC PEC and MICC Lifk, the Company®s subsidiaries, acquired 230 million
ol 328 million skares, respectively. of Industrial Bank in the open naarkel ar considerations off
RMBA,641 million and RMBS. 454 million respectively, Therefore, the Group®s aggregate mierest in
thils sissociste was increased from 1087 10 14.06%. Goodwill of RMBAES million arose from this”
BCQSition.

The above table lists the associites of the Group which prncipally affected the results of the yvear or
form 2 substantial porion of the net assets of the Group, To give details of other associates woukd,
in the opimion of the Directors, resuli in particulars of excessive length. As ai 31 December 2015,
apart from the two associntes disclosed nbove, the Group has in aggregate 11 (31 December 2014 7)
imematerial associates and joint ventures and their aggregate information was presenied in note 26(c).

Summarised consolidated financial information in respect of each of the Group’s material asociafes
is st out below, The summansed consolidated financial information below represents amounts
shown in the sssociate’s consalidated finnneinl siatements: prepared in accordance with the relevant
accounting policies and financial regulations applicable 1 entitics established in the RPC, and
adjusied for any material differences from [FRS.

170 The Pecple's Insursnce Company [Growp) of Ghina Limtted
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decembar 2015
fAmounds in miions of Renminbl, wnkess othanvse siafed)

26, INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES ANDJOINT VENTURES (continued)
{b) Paniculars of the principal assoclates ane as follows: fomtiimed)

Industrial Bank feonifmred

Reconcilintion of the above summarsed financial imformation 1o the carying amount of the inferest in
Industrial Bank recognised in the consolidated financial satements:

M September 30 Septeniber

15 2014

Net assets of Industnal Bank atributable to

equity holdzrs of Industrinl Bank 3424 233990
Total preference sharcs issucd by Industsial Bank (15,905 -
Net nsseis uiinbatoble o ordinary shane holders of Industrin! Bank 26519 233990
Propartion of the Groap's sharehollers” intensst in Industrial Bank 14.06% 10ETH
The Group®s shareholders” interest in net assets of Industraal Bank BE™ 25415
Goodwll 485 -
Net fair value adjistiseid b ihe investes’s’

identifiable assets and |Evhilities 1e04 1351
Amonisation of miangible assets and financaal

imstruments recopmisad in fair valoe adjustments (1N (%)
Carrying amoumt af the Group’s mterest in Industrnl Bank 41,351 26,718
Fair value of shares [isted in Mainlond China 45,000 30253

Om 31 December 2015, except for Industrial Bank which was Hsted on the Main Board of The Shanghai
Stock Exchange, Mumland China, all other mssociates that the Group hobds interests o are unlisted

companies.

Since [ndustrinl Bank shares are subject to kbek-up periods, in’ estimation of their foir value, the Group
wsed cqunted price of the shares taking into acoount of non-marketahility discount estimated using Black-
Scholes option pricing model. The Group used the historical volutility of share prices as the significant
unobservable impat i the fir value measrement of the: non-marketability discount. An mercase or
decrease in historical wolatility of sharcs would have a significant impact on the fair valse measuremnent
of non-marketability discount and the récorded fair valse, Therefore, thhe fair valse of the interésts in
Indusinial Bank was classificd s Level 3 hierarchy.

Inddustrinl Bank is a listed company and its annual resufts are psually pablic avoilable after the results
announcement of the Group, Therefore, s permitted by 1AS 28 “Investments in Associates™, the Group

accourst for fts share of the profil of Industrial Bank from | October 2014 1o M Seprember 2015 (31
December 2014: 1 October 201 3 10 30 September 2014),

172 The Pecple's Insursnce Company [Growp) of Ghina Limtted
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear anded 31 Decembaer 2015
JAmounts in millons of Renmnd, unlass ofhanyise siadad)

7. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

A Decemnber 31 December

015 2014
Begimning of year 10,642 10,075
Additions 15 0
Transfers from property and cquipment ok 2K 170 556
Transfer from prepaid land premium (e 30 T s
Giains om revahuiion of propertics upon transfer
from property and exquipmen 414 208
Giains on revahenion of properties upon iransfer
fromn prepaid land premiams: 14 1713
{Decnease Vincrease 0 fair vahse of investment properties frole 6icl) {510 2l
Transfer to property and equipment (note 28) 424) 1565)
Dispusals (1o {46)
End of year 10,358 10,682

The Group was still in the process of applying for title certificates for {nvestment propertics with o camying
value of RMRE3, 122 million as at 31 December 2005131 December 2014: RMB3,101 million),

The Group’s imvestment propertics were revalued at the end of the reponting period by independent professional
villuers. The mivestinent propertics beld by PICC P&C and MOC Life were fevaloed by DT Debenhiam
Tie Leung Limited, The investment properties held by PICC lovestment Holding was revalued by, Beping
Guorongxinghue Asscts Appraisal Company Limited, Yaluations were based on combination of the following
twi approaches;

{1} the direct comparison spproach asswming sale of each of these properties in is existing stale by making
reference to comparable sales transactions as available in the relevant market; or

{2} capitalisition of pet neitol income denived from the exisling enancies with allowance for the reversiomary
income potential of the propertics, using discount mics that reflect curment market nssessments of the
uncenainty in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

The mdependent valuers usually determine the fair value of the investment propertics as a weighted mverage of
valustions produced by these two appoaches scconding 1o their professional judgement. Therefose, these G
vahues are categorised as Leve] 3.

Thiere has been o change in the valuathon techmque used from the prioe year. i estimating the fair value of the
propertics, the highest and best use of the propentics are their curment use.

One of the key inpuls used in valuing. these imvesimsent propemies was the capitalisation mte used, which
mnges from 400 to 5.0% as @t 31 December 2015 (31 December 2004: 4,086 10 8.0%%), A shight increise in the

capatalisation mte wsed would result in a significant decrease m fhir value measurement of vesiment propertics,
and vice versa

Arvual Fisport 2015 175
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the pear anded 31 Decembaer 2015
JAmounts in millons of Renmnd, unlass ofhanyise siadad)

35, PENSION BENEFIT OBLIGATION feominmed)

{8}  The movements in the present value of early retirement and retirement benefits are shown below:

3N December 31 December

s 2014
Begrmning of year 1862 2614
Inerest cost on benedit obligation (nene 90 101 I
Actuarial losses arising from changes in financial assumpéions 126 2846
Actuanial losses arsing from expericnce adjustments 46 9%
Benefits paid (245) (254)
End of year 2 490 2862

The plans typically expose the Group fo inenest rate nsk and longevity risk.
. Inderest mle risk: o decrease in the bond interest mie will increase the plan tasbilioy.

*  Longevity nsks the present value of the defined benefit plan linbility is cakculnied by reference o
the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and afier their employment. An
increase i the life expectancy of the plan parbcipants will increase the plan's liability.

Iii agrzregate, actuareal bsses of RMB2T2 million (20 14: setumnial gains of RMB384 million) were credibed
1o otber comprehenstve income for the current year of 2015

In prior years, actuarial gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive income were included
in retnined profits in the period in which these gains or losses arose. During the current year, the
Geronip changed s acoounting policy 1o socumulate all actuarial losses recopnised for pension benefit
oblipations in a separate reserve headed “actuanal (lossesy gains on pension bemefit obligation” antil the
pemsion scheme is termanated, at which paint in time the cumulative actuanal losses recopnised in other
comprehensive moonie will be trnsfemed (o retained profis. As o resuli, an mmosid of RMB421 million,
which represents cumulitive actuarial bosses ansing from the pension scheme up 1o 31 December 2014,
was transherred from retained profits fo the actuarial {losses ) gains on pension benefit obligtion reserve,

This change represents a mere tansfer between the reserves of the Group and has had no other impact on
the comsolidated linancial salerens,

Ermst & Young (China) Advisory Limited wis engaged by the Group 10 measure the retitement benefie
plans o the end of coch annual reparting period.

Arvual Fisport 2015 189
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43, RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
{m)  Governance frnmework

The primary obpective of the Group®s nsk and finanoal management frmework 15 10 protect the Group’s
shareholders from events that hinder the sustnimable achievement of financial performance ohiectives,
including failing o exphodt opportunities. Key management recogiises the critical imporance of having
eificient amd effective nsk monagement systems in place.

(b} Capital mansgement approach

The Group seeks to optimise the stroctune and sources of capital to ensine that it consistently maximises
reburms io the sharcholders,

The Group®s approach o mamging capital nvolves managing asscis, labilities and risks in a coondinaed
way, mssessing shorfalls bevween reported and required capial levels (by each repuilated emlity) oi a
regular basas and taking approprioke actions (o adjust the capital positon of the Group in hight of changes
in econpie conditions and msk chamcteristics.

The primry souree of Gipial uwsed by the Group s equity sharcholders” funds and bumowings. The Group
alsn makes reinsursnce pmangements io manage s regulaiory capiial requinements.

The Group has had no skgnificant changes in its policies and processes in respect of its capital structuse
duiring the current year.

The solvency margin ratios of the Group's principal subsidiaries are listed below:
3 December 2005 1 December 2014

Regulatory  Minisism Sobvemey  Regolatoey  Misimum Solvency
capieal  pegulanory margin capial  Feguluory m.ru_n

{tn EME millicmp hetd capital ratin Bl capilal o
MEC PR H3.356 RN el 126% 0440 33,290 pel 8
MCC Life 36,500 12,082 33, M58 1L 3ol
MCC Health L1 1836 175% 3206 LTI 18T

According 10 “Solvency Regulstions of Insurance Companies”, the solvency margin mtio is compuied by
dwvnding the regulatory capital held by the mmimum regulstory capital. The China Insurance Regulatory
Commisston {(“CIRC™) closely monitors those msumnce companies with solvency margin mtio less
than 1007 sod may, depending on the individual circumstances, undertake certain regulndory. measunes,
ncluding but not limited 1o restocting the payment of dividends; imsurnce companies with sslvency
margin ratio between 108G andd 150% would be requirad 1o submit and implement plans preventing capital
from being inadequate; instmace companies with solvency margin mtio above 100%% but sgmificing
sodvency sk noticed would be nequired to take necessury rectification action.

194 The Pecple's Insursnce Company [Growp) of Ghina Limtted
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43, RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK feominwed)
feh  Regulatory framework

Regulators ane primanly mterested i protecting the nghes of policybolders and monitor them closely 1o
ensure that the Group is satisfactorily mannging nffairs for their benefit. At the same time, regubalons ane
akso iierested in ensusing that the Group malidains an approprate selvency position W mect uiforeseen
linbalitics arising from econoemc shocks or ol disasiers,

44, RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND POLICTES
{m) losurance rivk

{1y Iuswrance risk fypes

The risk under an insurance contrct is the possibility of occurmence of insured events and
uncenanty of the aimoumnt and tening of the resuliing claims. The principal sk the Group faces
under such contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments exoeed the carmying amount off
Insurance labilities. This could sccur due 1o any of the following faciors:

Ocourrence risk — the possibility that the mumber of insured cvents will differ from that expected.
Seventy risk - the possibiliny that the costs of the evenes will differ from those expected.

Development risk ~ the possibiliy et chanpes may occus in the amount of & policyhobler’s
obligation s the end of the contract period.

The variability of risks is improved by diversification of risk of loss to o large pontfolio of insurance
contracts as 4 more diversificd partfolio is less likely o be affected across the board by change in
any subset of the porifolio. The variability of nsks i also improved by carefil risk selection and
impéernentntion of underwriting smate gy and guidelines.

When the underwriting risks principally are momality risks, epidemics, widespread changes
in lifestyle and natural disasters may result in earlier or more claims than expected. when the
underwriting risks principally are longevity rigks, continued improvement in medical science
and social conditions. that would improve Tongevity and may resulf in losses to annuity or similar
contracts, For contracts with discretionury. participation features, a significamt portion of thess
insurance risks are shared with the insured parties.

Insurance risk of life insurnce contracts is also affected by the policybolders” rights to terminsie the
contracts, o pay redaced premiums, refiise 1o pay premiums or 1o avail anmuity conversion rights.
Therefore, the resultant insurance risk is subject to policyholders” behaviour and decisions.

Arvual Fisport 2015 195
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44, RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND POLICIES fromainued)
{m)  Imsurance risk feomfmued)

() Twswrance risk fypes (eontinged)

Prioe to August 2013, traditional long-term life msurance products sold by the Group was priced af
a valuation interest rate of 2.5% per annum, Subsequently, this prcing wssmmplion was relased for
traditional products in 2013 and then for pankcipating prodiscts during the current year. Among the
gross lomg-tarm liabilities of RMB2ES.376 million o5 ar 31 December 2015, RMBI65 435 million
wiis reserved for products priced puanmiesd at 2.5%, while RMB 03,689 million was reserved For
products priced guaranteed at 4.025%., I the actual invesiment retums generted by premiums of
Tong: serm life msurance products were less than those sssumed in the pricing, the Group may ncur
lnsses on these insUrmnce conTacts.

Participating nsurnce products are very common in the Chinese market. Long term life insirance
Tiabilivies in relation 1o panscipating insurance products was RMBI48032 million as at 31 December
2005, which comstitmes around 5295 of the 1otal long term life insurance liabilites of the Group.

For mon-life insurance contracts, claims are often affected by many faciors such as climate changes,
nazural dissseers, colamities, and terronst activites,

Gross and met premiums written 1o cenain extent represent the nsk exposures of the Group before
and affer reinswance and the information is presented monode 3 1o these consolidated finomcial
staterments,

2} Jswrance risk comoenration

Mon-life claims of cemain provinces in the PRC are ofien affected by natural desssters including
Tooding, earthquakes uad typhoons. Therefore, an undue concentration of risk wmits in these areas
imay have on inpect on the severity of claim payments on o portfolio basis. The Group has achicved
progrphical diversification by accepting risks i different provinees of the PRC (including Homg
Kong,

The Group’s conceniration of non-life insurance risk before and after reinsurance, measurcd by
geographical iumover and net writien premiums of non-life insurmnce, i as follows:

015 Hil4
[T Nel Ciross Met
Coastal and developed provinces cities
{including Hong Keng) 127,794 113327 14,668 49,501
Narth-eastern China 15,158 15,758 16,471 14,500
Northern China 37,654 34914 33,940 52
Central China 16,733 33,260 2 28,545
Western Ching 61342 55,799 35,366 016
Total premiums written from
non-life insurance contracts 181817 151058 153, 166 393

196 The Pecple's Insursnce Company [Growp) of Ghina Limtted
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44, RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTTVES AND POLICIES feontinned)
(b} Financial risks
Iy Credit rivk

Cred sk is the risk that one party {0 a firancial instrument will cause a financial loss 10 the ather
party by failing jo discharge an obligation,

The Group is exposed to credit risks primarily sssocisted with its: deposit amangements with
commercial banks, subordinated debis, debt investiment schemes. imerests receivable, other
receivables, mvestments in debl securities, imoestments i trust schemes, insurance receivables and
reinsurance amangements. The Group holds a diversified portfolio of debr imstrument and do nog
have concentration risk excepd for tressury bonds ssued by Mindsiry of Finance, The amounts of
povermiment isued debl securities is disclosed in note 19,

The Group evaluates {ts credit risks in investimems by both qualitative and quamitstive analysis,
including studving the relevant industry, enterprise munagement, financial factors, company
prospects, a5 well as the wse of miemal credit models. The Group mitigates credit fsk by using &
variety of methods including impositions of aggregnie counterpany exposure limits and increasing
the diversification of fixed income imvestment portfolios.

The Group's credit risk associned with insurance receivables mainly arises from nom-lifie insurance
busingss for which the Group only issoes insurmnce policics on credit 10 corparie customers or 1o
individuals who purchase certain policies through insumnce intermediaries. A policybolder usially
has o maximum credit period of three months but o longer period con be granted on o discretionary
Iuiais. For large comporite customers and cenadn multi-vear polickes, payments by instalments e
usially armanged.

Reinsurance of the Group is mainly placed with reinsurers with Standard & Poor’s mtings of A-(or
ratings of an cqual kevel given by other interational rating institutions such as AM. Best, Fitch
and Moody's) or shove. Mamagement perfomms regular assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers.
10 upelnte reinsumnce purchase stmicgies and ascertain suiable allowances for impairmemt of
TEINSUANCS A55e18.

202 The Pecple's Insursnce Company [Growp) of Ghina Limtted
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44, RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTTVES AND POLICIES fronninued)

(b}  Financial risks feontinged)
2 Liguidity risk

Liguidity sk is the risk of ot having sccess to saufficient funds or bemng unable to liguidate a
positim in o tmely manser ot a ressonable price oo meet the Groug's obligations as they become
e,

The Group |5 exposed to lsguidity risk on insurance policies that permit strrender, withdrawal
or other forms of early termination. As disclosed i note 24, the Group holds certain financial
instrumens that are classifiad as loans and recelvibles as active markes do not exist for these
instrurments, The Group also clissafied certain debd securities a5 held-to-maturity financial assets and
15 oaly allowed 1o dispase of these financial asiets prior 1o maturities in limited situation withoul
taanting held-10-matwity financial assets. Therefore, the Group's alality 1o manage liquidity nsks by
disposing of these financial assets will be Hmised by these factors, Moreover, quoted financial asses
Teld by she Growp are mainly raded on the stock exchanges or in inter-bank markets in the Mainlmnd
Chinp. Any significant decrease i hquidity an these markets will impasr the Group's abildy 1o
manage its liguidity risk

The Group manages the liguidity nsks of 15 major operating subsidarics by requiring them 1o
perform cash flow foreckses on & quanerly basis under different scenarios and establish contingency
phans for any expecied shortfall of lguidiry,

The Group held cash and cash equivalents which accounted for 6% of total nssets a8 m 31 Decernber
2005 (31 Docemaber 2014 5%,

It 15 unusual for an emerprise primanly ansacting msurance: busmess 1o predict te requiremens
of funding with absolte certainty, as the theory of probability 15 applied on insurance contracts
fiy ascertain the likely provision and the period when such lishilities will require setthement. The
amounts anl mabmity periods of these insurmnce: liobilities are thus bascd on management’s best
estimate pecording to statisical tiechnlgques mnd past experience.

The table below summarises maturity profiles of Tinancial’/insumnce pssets, financial/ insarance
Liabilitics and pensten benefit obligations of the Groap, Maturity profiles of financial assets and
linbilitics ane prepared wsing the conrectusl collection or repayment dates, while those of the
reinsurance assets, insurance and pension liabilitics are preparcd on the hasis of expected timing of
settlemgats based on the underlying sctuarial pssumptions. Al amounts are based on undiscounted
contractal cash Mows,

Arvual Foporl 2015 207
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44, RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTTVES AND POLICIES fronninued)
(b} Financial risks frontimyed)
() Market rivk fcontined)
Price rivk

Price risk {s the risk tha the fair value of fmure cash flows of a financkal instnement will fuctuate
becasse of changes in market prices (other than those aniging from imierest mate nisk of currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by Bctors specific to the iividual financinl insruement or its
issuer, or Eactors affecting all similar financial instruments traded i the market.

The Group's price risk exposure mainly relates 1o the stock and fund invesiments whase vahies will
Muictizate as & result of clanges in mirkel prices,

The Group holds & diversified ponfolio of equity instruments and therefore do not have significant
concentriion risk in any pamicelar individu] instrument, An analysis of sectors that the Group
tnvest in is dasclosed in note 20, However, the Group principally invest in the stock markets of Hong
Kong and Mainkand China and & subject to price risk arising from volatiliides of these markets.

The Group's price risk policy requires sctting and managing investment obpectives, Subject to laws
el megulasory policies, the Groap mankges price risk by diversification of invesmments, seeting limits
for mvestments in different securities. cic.

The Group wses Vall methodolegy 1o measure the expected maximurm loss i respect of squity price
misk for stock and musual fund invesanents measurad at G value (other thas those measurod i level
3 fair valsz) over 3 bolding period of 10 trading days ai a confidence level of 99%.

The VaR metbodology quantifies the potentisl maximum loss under ihe pssumption of pormal
market conditions only, and therefore when extreme market events oceur, the potertial mazimum
loss could be undercstimated, YaR also uses historical data 1o forecast future price retums, which
could differ substantially from the pasi. Moreover, the use of a 10-duy hokling period assumes that
all positions n the ponfolio can be liguidated or bedged in 10 troding days. The said assumption may
not be cornect in reality, especially in o market which lacks liguidity,

As ot 31 December
s 214

Equity price VaRt 4713 3,150

214 The Pecple's Insursnce Company [Growp) of Ghina Limtted
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45,

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY fronfimued)

(=)

L]

Fair value of the fioancial asseis and Gnoocial linbilities thai sre measored at fair volue on o
recurring basks feontimed)

As 31 December 2015, the Group wansferred cernin debd secunties with a carrying amount of
RAEA, 122 millon (H014; BMEB 4,965 million) from Level | to Level 2 as the Group could not obtain
quoted prices in active markets, The Group tmnsferred debe securitics with a carrying amount of
RMB4, 686 million (2014: Nil) from Level 2 to Level 1 as the Group is able to obtam quoted preces in
active markets.

Fair value of fimancinl asscts and labilities not careied at air valoe

Some of the Ciroup's finincinl assets and financial liabilities dne not carried at fair value at the end of each
reparting perod but thelr fir values are disclosed in the tble st ous it the beginning of this note, The
level of fadr viilue in the fair value hiemerchy in respect of these fiuir values disclosed are as the following:

Fair valoe Werarchy ar 31 December X5

Level Lovel 2 Todnl
Financial assets
Held-to-muturity financial assets 3126 13,773 135,899
Investmicnis classified as loans
and receivables - 120,760 121,70
Fmancisl liabilines
Subordinated debts - H 33T 44,337
Fair value hicrarchy at 31 December 2014
Level 1 Level 2 Tl
Fimancipl assets
Held-io-maturity financial assets T4 I 16,686 124,140
Inivestmcnls classified as boans
and receivables - 102,721 102,721
Financial liabiliies
Subordinated debts - 51,376 51,376

The fair valies of the financial assets and financial lishilities included in the Level 2 categories above
have been desermined in accondance with generally accepted pricing models based on a discounted
cash Mow analysis, with the mest significant impuis being e discount mie thal reflects the credit risk of
coumterpanties or the Growp,

Tha People's Insurance Corpany [Group) of China Limited
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45, FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY jeonfimied)
(e} Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measuremenis

31 December 31 December

s 2014
Unlisted mvailable-for-sale financial assets
Crpening balance 21,300 ), 304
Reclassification from cos2 i fulr value 1,766 -
Additions 4,505 1,000
Disposals 19,939)
Closing balance 17,722 21,300

Certnin available-for-sale were reclassificd from being mexsured st cost 0 measured af fair value as
manngement is of the opinion fair value measaemend can provide more rebevant information io users of
these finuncial statements.

In respect of unlisted available-for-sale equity securitics, mutual funds ond tnest schemes of RMB10.361
millkom {200 4: RMB20, 300 mallion), fis fair vahue is measuned by discounted cash flows that are estimated
based on contractunl smounts and dividend mies, discounted at a mie that reflects the nsk charcteristics of
the counterparty. A 30-hasis print incnease/decrease o the discount mie holding other varinbles constan
will result in & decrease’increase in carrying amount by RMB 107 million/RMB 121 million (31 Decemiber
2004 RMB287 million RMB317 million).

Az the fair values of all imvestment properties are categorised as Level 3, reconciliation of the fiir valie
moverments are presented in note 27 to these consolidated financial sotements.

48,  CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

{m)  Contingencies

(1) Due to the nature of the msurance besiness, the Group 1s subjest 10 legal proceedings in the ondsnary
course of business, including being the plaiatifT of the defendant in litigation and arbitration. Such
legal procesdings mostly mvolve claims on the Group's ssurnce palickes and the bosses incumed
will be panty indemnified by reinsurers or other recoveries including sabvape and subrogation.
Provision hns been made for the probable losses to the Group, incleding those claims where
mamagemsnt can reasonably estimate the ouscome of the litigation taking o accoant the relited
legal advice, IF any. No provision s made for contingencies and begal proceedings when the nesult
cannat be reasomably estimated or an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits i not

probable.

Arvual Fisport 2015 219
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46, CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS foondmmed)
{m) Contingencies feorsinued)

(2} The Company. underwent restracturing and reorganisaiion dunng the period from 1996 and 1995
As @ result of the restructuning and reorganisation, the Company and another insurance company
were spun ofl from the predecessor company, the People’s Insurance Company of China, and
cach spun=oiT entity inheried certam assets and Lsbalines. During the process, the Company owed
certain amounts o that insumance company and settled these debis by cash payments, assets or by
certamn offstting arrangements, Due 1othe long history and tumover of <aff, the Company is not
able 10 reach an agreement with thit insumnce company regarding the balances of debts that have
been repaid in the form of assets or offsehing. Potentially, cenain recedvables or payables may exist
between these two entites. However, the Company’'s management is of the opindon that the deles
have been fully repaid, and therefore any contingent indebtedness will moe significantly mpset these
consolidaed financial statements.

{33 As at the report daie, there were various title defects for certain investment propenies, property and
eiuipment, prepaid land premivms and other assets beld by the Group. The Group may be requaired
10 incur costs inchsling relevant tixes 1o remediote these defects. The cost that will be meurmed for
ihe remeduation cannol be quantified ai this stape.

(4] Due 1o historical reasons, the Group owned o large number of brapches and subsidiaries. Although
these bramches or subsidiaries may have been chosed or liquidated, the Group may still have
expasimes o any non-compliance committed by these branches or subsidiaries.

Otlser than the above, 25 at the end of 2015, the Growp had no significam contingencies to dischose,

b Copital commitments anid operating leases

) Copiral coummirnen

31 Decembier 31 December
015 24

Property and cquipment commitmcits;
Comtracted, bt not prowided for 2 466 1434

220 The Pecple's Insursnce Company [Growp) of Ghina Limtted
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46, CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS foondmmed)
{by  Capital commitments and operating leases foowtimyedl

2} fovestment commitaenis

On 28 December 2015, a major subsidiary of the Company entéred into a share transfer agreement
with Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschall (“Deutsche Bank™), Sal. Oppenberm jr, & Cie. AG & Co.
Kommanditgeselischaft aul’ Aktlen (“Sal. Oppenheim™) and Dewsche Bank Luxembourg 5.A.
("Deutsche Bank Luxembourg™), pursuant 1o which each of Deutsclie Bonk, Sal. Oppenbeim and
Deutsche Bank Luxembourg conditionally agreed fo tranafer to the major subsiciary of the Company
£77 million shares, 267 million shares and 992 millicn shares of Hua Xia Bank Co., Limdted (*Hia
Xin Bank™), respectively, held by them (amounting to @ total of 2,136,045 885 shares, representing
approximately 19.99% of the total fssueed shares of Hua Xin Bank) and the mapor suhsidiary of the
Company conditionally agresd 1o purchase these shares, Based on the said share ermnsfer agreement,
the total considerations of such transaction i estimated ot berween RMB23.0 billion to RMB25.7
hillion by the major subsidiory of the Company and will be paid in cash. Also, pursuant o relevant
regulatory requirements, there will be o S-vear lock-up perisd for these shores. once the transaction
15 compléted. At the date of approving of these consalidated financial satements, sich trnsaction is
still subject to regulatocy approval, among others.

3 Operating leaws
(kA fessor
Thse Group leases s investment peoperties (note 27) under operating lease prangements,
with bease tenms moging rom one 1o ten' years. The lenms of the leases generally requing the
bemanis 10 pay security depaosits and provide for periodic rent adjsments acconding o the ithen
prevailing market conditions.

At the end of 2015 and 2014, the Growp had fotal futsre minimem lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling doc as follows:

31 December 31 December

2015 214

Within ane year ans 192

In the second to fifth years, inchusive 446 237

After five years 81 1}

TOTAL H32 540
Arvual Foporl 2015 234
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47, RELATED PARTY DSCLOSURES feannimurd)
{dy  Balances with relaied parties (comtinned)

31 December 31 December

Receivables from o major sharcholder s 2014
(Orther assets
MOF a4 144

A trust scheme of RMBI0361 million (31 December 2014: RMBEN 30 nullion) is controtled by China

Cregat Truss,
3 December 31 December

Payables to associates 2018 2014
Subordinsted debis

Industrinl Bank 2411 2405
(iher linbilitics

Indusdrial Bank 51 3l
TOTAL 2461 2456

(e} Transactions with state=owned entities in the PRC

The Company is a stse-owned enterprise which is subject 1o the comrol of the Stute Council of the PRC
government, The Group opetates in an econcmic emvironment predomimated by enterprises direcaly
or indircctly comrodled, jointly controllid or significantly influenced by the povernment through its
authorstics, alfiliates or other organisations (collectively the “government-relaied entities™).

Tramsactions with other govermment-rekaied entities include insurance policies sold, remsumnce puschased,
deposits placed with banks, investments in debits o bonds and commisions pay 1o banks and postal offices
for insurance polices distributed.

Monagement considers that fransactions with government-relatzd entities ane activities eonducted in the
onfinary course of business, and that the dealings of the Group have net been significamly or unduly
aifecied by ihe fict thai the Growp and those government-relared entities are uliimaiely controlled or
owned by the PRC government, The Group has also established pricing policies for products and services
and such pricing policies do not depend on whether or not the customens ane government-related entitics,

Due to the complex ownership strocture, the PRC government may hold mdirect interests in many
companies. Some of these interests may, in themselves or when combined with other indirect interests, be
comrolling mterests which may nol be known 1o the Groug.

224 The Pecple's Insursnce Company [Growp) of Ghina Limtted
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2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
13.05 13.77 17.31 19.78 20.37
11.94 12.07 13.89 16.39 18.55
12.34 12.65 15.79 17.18 19.40
12.33 13.69 17.31 19.47 18.56
100
2015 12 2016 1 2016 2 2016 3 2016 4 2016 5
19.26 18.52 18.48 17.52 17.42 16.86
18.55 17.81 17.15 17.18 16.69 16.42
18.87 18.01 17.61 17.35 16.94 16.67
100
15.89 2016 17

100
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2014 2037 12 31 15.315% 15.315% %
2038 15% 15% %
2014 2037 12 31
20.315% 2038 20%
(b)
2009
2016 1 1 2016
©

(©)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE PEOPLE'S INSURANCE COMPANY (GROUP) OF CHINA LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Peopl€'s Republic of Chinawith limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Peopl€'s Insurance Company (Group)
of China Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group™) set
out on pages 3 to 145, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2014 and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give atrue and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
reguirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 1n making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of consolidated financial statementsthat give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis
for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE PEOPLE'S INSURANCE COMPANY (GROUP) OF CHINA LIMITED
(Incorporated in the People's Republic of Chinawith limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Peopl€'s Insurance Company (Group)
of China Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group™) set
out on pages 3 to 136, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at 31
December 2015 and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give atrue and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control asthe
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
reguirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 1n making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of consolidated financial statementsthat give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity'sinternal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis
for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE PEOPLE'S INSURANCE COMPANY (GROUP) OF CHINA LIMITED - continued
(Incorporated in the People's Republic of Chinawith limited liability)

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financia statements give atrue and fair view of the financial positon
of the Group as at 31 December 2015, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2016
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